
Meeting of:  Communities, Regeneration and Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date: Wednesday, 21st June, 2017
Time: 6.15 pm.
Venue: Hollingworth - (Room 108B), Training and 

Conference Suite, First Floor, Number One 
Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence.

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.   

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting.

5.  MINUTES 3 - 6

6.  DRAFT COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 
2017/18 

7 - 9

7.  DISCRETIONARY CRISIS FUND AND LOCAL WELFARE 
PROVISION YEAR END REPORT 2016/17 

10 - 22

8.  DIRECTORATE PLANS 2016-17 QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE 
UPDATE - NEIGHBOURHOODS DIRECTORATE 

23 - 31

9.  DIRECTORATE PLANS 2016-17 QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE 
UPDATE - ECONOMY DIRECTORATE 

32 - 62

10.  GMCA/AGMA SCRUTINY POOL 63 - 89

Public Document Pack



To note the minutes of the meetings of the Joint GMCA and AGMA 
Scrutiny Pool held on 13th January, 10th February, 10th March and 7th 
April 2017.

Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
CommitteeCommittee Members
Councillor Neil Butterworth Councillor Susan Emmott
Councillor John Hartley Councillor Peter Malcolm
Councillor Shaun O'Neill Councillor Liam O'Rourke
Councillor Ann Stott JP Councillor Shah Wazir
Councillor June West Councillor Peter Winkler
Councillor Sameena Zaheer

For more information about this meeting, please contact 
Caroline Denyer
caroline.denyer2@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 924717
Governance and Committee Services Officer

mailto:caroline.denyer2@rochdale.gov.uk


COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 8 February 2017

PRESENT:  Councillor Butterworth (In the Chair); Councillors Susan Emmott, 
Malcolm, Meredith, O'Neill, O'Rourke, Stott and Zaheer

OFFICERS: D Bowler (Assistant Director Place), H Bellis, M Dalzell and 
J McAuley (Neighbourhoods Directorate), M Robinson (Assistant Director 
Planning) and D Cooke (Economy Directorate) and C Denyer (Resources 
Directorate)  
Pl
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Detective Chief Inspector John Harris (GMP) 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillors Wazir, West and Winkler

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
34 There were no declarations of interest. 

MINUTES
35 DECIDED – That the Minutes of the meeting of the Communities, 
Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee held 
9th November 2016 be approved as a correct record and signed by the 
Chair.

COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17
36 The Committee considered a report of the Assistant Director (Legal, 
Governance and Workforce) which presented the updated Communities, 
Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work 
Programme 2016/17.

The recommendations were put forward as Overview and Scrutiny Procedure 
Rule 7 requires Overview and Scrutiny Committees to set a work programme 
and to report it to the Council.

DECIDED – that the Work Programme 2016/17 as appended to the 
submitted report be noted;

DISCRETIONARY CRISIS FUND AND LOCAL WELFARE PROVISION 6 
MONTH PERFORMANCE REPORT
37 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
which informed Members of the Discretionary Crisis Fund’s performance over 
the first six month period of 2016/17, April – September 2016, which is Year 4 
of the scheme. 

The Discretionary Crisis Fund offered support of those setting up home when 
resettling from temporary accommodation that may need help in acquiring 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



essential household items. The scheme also provided a mechanism to make 
small crisis awards for those who found themselves in financial difficulty for 
emergency household fuel or clothes.

The local welfare provision also funded small contributions to a number of 
Food Banks and grant funds to a number of community based projects via the 
Innovation Fund.

Members of the Committee, in scrutinising the report, asked for consideration 
to be given as to the how the fund could be better promoted to increase 
awareness of the fund.  

DECIDED – That (1) the report be noted;
(2) an informal meeting of Committee Members be convened to 

discuss the operation of the Discretionary Crisis Fund;
(3) the Cabinet be requested to continue to support the 

Discretionary Crisis Fund and local welfare provision. 

STREET LIGHTING PERFORMANCE REVIEW
38 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
the purpose of which was to provide an update to Members on the Street 
Lighting PFI. 

The Street Lighting PFI Client Management Team had been working closely 
with the Service Provider to implement the improvements requested by 
previous meetings of this Committee and of the former Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and it was now considered that the Street Lighting Service had 
addressed the previous concerns.

The Committee noted that as a result of the improved relationship between 
the parties and as a gesture of goodwill the Service Provider has taken the 
decision to withdraw all existing contractual disputes and that this had been 
received favourably by the Council.

In considering the report Members of the Committee raised issues relating to 
the financial adjustments which had been applied as a means of incentivising 
the Service Provider to maintain performance standards and requested that 
the detailed financial information be circulated to Members of the Committee.

DECIDED – that (1) the Street Lighting Performance Review be noted; 
and 

(2) the Director of Neighbourhoods be requested to circulate to 
Members of the Committee details of the financial adjustments applied 
as a means of incentivising the Service Provider.

ROCHDALE SAFER COMMUNITIES PARTNERSHIP - MONITORING: 
QUARTER 2 - 2016/17
39 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
which provided Members with a summary of how the Rochdale Safer 
Communities Partnership (RSCP) had performed against its targets during the 

Page 4



second quarter of 2016/2017 (July - September 2016). In presenting the 
report the Director referred to a strategic assessment that was in progress and 
was intended to inform the strategic priorities of the Partnership.  Future 
reports to the Committee were expected to reflect these changes.  

The Committee considered future performance monitoring arrangements and 
the Committee requested that the RSPC performance indicators also be 
included in the Neighbourhood Directorate performance dashboard. 

A Member once again requested that the crime statistics for Heywood town 
centre be separated from those of the Heywood North Ward (as the town 
centre is wholly located in the Heywood North Ward), as it was felt that the 
inclusion of the data gave a false impression of crime in that Ward.

DECIDED – That (1) the report be noted;
           (2) future performance monitoring reports of the RSCP be 
requested to separate out the crime statistics for Heywood town centre 
from the remainder of the Heywood North.

(3) the RSCP’s performance indicators be included on the 
Neighbourhood Directorate performance dashboard.

(4) the Director of Neighbourhoods be requested to meet with the 
Chair of this Committee and the Chair of the Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee to provide challenge to the data provided within the 
Performance Bulletin.

DIRECTORATE PLANS 2016-17 QUARTER 3 PERFORMANCE UPDATE
40 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Economy and the 
Director of Neighbourhoods which presented the positions of their respective 
Directorates at the end of Quarter Three (31st December 2016) and of the 
activities contained in the Economy Directorate Plan 2016/17 and the 
Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2016/17.

In terms of the Economy Directorate 91.67% (22 out of 24) of the actions 
included in the Directorate Plan 2016/17 were not yet completed but were on 
target for successful completion by the 31st March 2017. Of the two other 
actions one had been successfully completed and the other was not 
completed by the target date, due to circumstances outside of the Directorates 
control.

The Director of Economy also submitted an additional appendix to his report 
that provided Members with performance information on the activities of the 
Rochdale Development Agency which are undertaken on behalf of the 
Council, for the first three quarters of 2016/17 (April - December).

In terms of the Neighbourhoods Directorate 42.86% (12 out of 28) of the 
actions included in the Directorate Plan 2016/17 were not yet completed but 
were on course to be successfully completed before the end of March 2017. 
Of the remaining sixteen actions eight were completed successfully and by 
the target date whilst six actions (relating to working in partnership with land 
owners and developers to bring forward a supply of good quality housing 

Page 5



sites; the launch of the new place branding project and Rochdale brand; the 
formulation of a 5-10 year Residential Growth Strategy; exploration of an 
option to deliver Town Centre Housing; the completion of the development of 
new Communications Strategy; improvements to roads, footpaths bridges and 
structures and an increased percentage of roads that are of an acceptable 
standard) had not been completed by the target date with a further two actions 
(relating to the delivery of a specific plan of shared ICT services with Oldham 
Council; and the development a new 3-year Homelessness Strategy) were not 
completed due to circumstances outside the Directorates control.

DECIDED – That the report be noted.

RENEWABLE ENERGY SCRUTINY STUDY GROUP
41 The Chair provided an update on the work of the Energy Scrutiny Study 
Group. 

The Committee was advised that an interim report would be submitted to the 
meeting of the joint GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool scheduled to be held on 10th 
March 2017. 

DECIDED – that the report be noted

GMCA/AGMA SCRUTINY POOL
42 DECIDED – That the Minutes of the meeting of the Joint 
GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool held on 9th December 2016, be noted.

Page 6



COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Draft Work Programme 2017/2018 

Introduction

The Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee was established by the Council at the meeting held on 19th May 2015, 
the principal role of the Committee being to bring together both the physical and 
skills aspects of economic regeneration, and the supporting work of services such as 
leisure, highways, housing and environmental services etc, that provide the 
opportunities for work and the improvement of life experiences for the Borough’s 
communities.

Areas of focus for the Committee include the scrutiny of partners or key contractors 
relevant to the remit of the Committee.

The work programme for the Committee is drawn up through consideration of the 
statutory roles of the Committee, including the ‘call-in’ or review of executive 
decisions made, budget and policy consultation, and review of service delivery, with 
scheduling reflecting the anticipated consideration of business to deliver these 
functions.  The Committee has options for developing its own agenda and can 
request further business to come forward.

In brief, these are to hold the executive to account and to maintain an oversight of 
the delivery of Council services.  This is undertaken principally through the following 
means:-

 
 Scrutiny of Executive Decisions through the ‘Call-in’ process;
 The consideration of Budget and Policy Framework proposals for 

consultative purposes;
 The consideration of a range of performance monitoring/management 

data;
 The specific consideration of individual service issues as may be specified 

by the Committee. 

The Committee’s Work Programme is prepared on the basis of known items at this
time.  Scheduling of some business remains to be determined and this is reflected in
the Work programme.  The following table highlights issues where there is either an
agreement or an anticipation that specific items may come forward.  Other issues will
be brought forward as indicated above.    

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



21st June 2017

19th July 2017

Work Programme Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals

Food and Feed Plan 2017/18 Performance management and 
monitoring

Environmental Enforcement Policy Scrutiny of proposals
Waste Collection Policy Scrutiny of proposals
Performance Monitoring  – Rochdale Safer 
Communities Partnership 

Performance management and 
monitoring

Rochdale Boroughwide Housing Final Performance monitoring at the 
end of the 5 year transfer period

Renewable Energy Scrutiny Study Group For information

GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes for information/discussion

20th September 201

Work Programme 2017/2018 Update 
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Performance Monitoring 2016/17 Registered 
Providers

Performance management and 
monitoring

Adverse  Weather Plan Scrutiny of proposals
Property Investment Strategy Scrutiny of proposals
Vehicle Access Crossing Policy Scrutiny of proposals
Enforcement / Public Disorder Policy Scrutiny of proposals
GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes Minutes For information/discussion

22nd November 2017

Work Programme 2017/2018 Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Directorate Plan Updates Neighbourhoods 
Directorate
Economy Directorate (incorporating RDA)

Performance management and 
monitoring

Performance Monitoring of Registered 
Provider Partners

Annual Report - scrutinising 
performance

Work Programme To consider the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2017/2018

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Discretionary Crisis Fund and Local Welfare 
Provision Year End Report 2016/17

Performance monitoring and 
management

Directorate Plan Updates -
Neighbourhoods Directorate
Economy Directorate (incorporating RDA)

Performance management and 
monitoring

GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes For information/discussion

Page 8



Housing Allocation Policy Scrutiny of proposals
GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool For information/discussion

24th January 2018

Work Programme 2017/2018 Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals 

Link4Life – Six monthly update report Performance monitoring and 
management

Directorate Plan Updates -
Neighbourhoods Directorate 
Economy Directorate (incorporating RDA)

Performance monitoring and 
management

Performance Monitoring 2017/18 –
Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership

Performance management and 
monitoring

GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes for information/discussion

21st March 2018

Work Programme 2017/2018 Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Discretionary Crisis Fund – six month 
update report

Performance monitoring and 
management

6 monthly Performance Monitoring 
including:
Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership

Performance management and 
monitoring

Directorate Plan Update:
Neigbourhoods Directorate
Economy Directorate (incorporating RDA)

Performance management and 
monitoring

Rochdale Boroughwide Housing Annual Performance Review 
GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes for information/discussion

Other business to be scheduled

Rochdale Riverside funding
An Informal meeting to be convened as directed 
by the Chair in consultation with the Director of 
Economy.  

Draft Site Allocations Plan Scrutiny of proposals
Homelessness Prevention Scrutiny of proposals
Greater Manchester Combined 
Authority 

Understanding the role of scrutiny within the 
combined authority (to be considered jointly with 
Corporate and Health, Schools and Care 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees)

Page 9



Agenda Item

Report to Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.

Date of Meeting 21st June 2017
Portfolio Neighbourhoods 
Report Author Helen Bellis 
Public/Private Document Public 

Discretionary Crisis Fund and Local Welfare Provision Year End Report 2016/17

Executive Summary

1. The report outlines the performance of the Council’s Discretionary Crisis Fund 
throughout 2016/17. It reports on applications received, those that were 
successful and those that were refused, which wards submitted reports and 
the type of awards made. The report also highlights the work and successes 
of the local welfare provision community projects.

Recommendation

2. For Members to note the information presented in the report.

Reason for Recommendation

3. It was been agreed by Members of the Communities, Regeneration and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee that a year-end and 6 monthly 
report would be presented.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

Background 

The Discretionary Crisis Fund (DCF) provides white goods and basic furniture in support 
of those setting up home when resettling from temporary accommodation; for example 
when fleeing domestic abuse or leaving temporary homelessness accommodation. The 
Fund also provides a mechanism to make small crisis awards for those who find 
themselves in financial difficulty; for example, to provide emergency household fuel, or 
for an emergency clothes allowance.

The local welfare provision budget also grant funds contributions to a number of Food 
Banks within the borough (see paragraphs 3.19 to 3.23) and also grant funds a number 

Page 10

Agenda Item 7



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

of small community based projects (see Paragraph 4.17 – 4.18 and Appendix 1 of this 
report).

Applications to the DCF

The DCF received 1,402 applications throughout 2016/17; 61% of these were made via 
the telephone, with the remainder being submitted online. 66% of applications were 
successful and 30% were refused. 58 of the applications were withdrawn or cancelled by 
applicants, or were pending a decision at the time of this report. 

The table below shows the applications received, those that were successful and the 
number refused; the table compares with data from 2015/16.

Table 1 - Applications received, successful and refused for 2015/16 to 2016/17

Quarter / Year Received Successful applications Refused applications

2016/17 361 214 (59%) 138 (38%)
Q1

2015/16 572 243 (42%) 283 (49%)

2016/17 339 229 (68%) 103 (30%)
Q2

2015/16 509 275 (54%) 227 (45%)

2016/17 320 219 (68%) 92 (29%)
Q3

2015/16 407 248 (61%) 140 (34%)

2016/17 382 263 (69%) 86 (23%)
Q4

2015/16 453 250 (55%) 161 (36%)

2016/17 1,402 925 (66%) 419 (30%)
Full year

2015/16 1,941 1,016 (52%) 811 (42%)

The 3 main reasons in 2016/17, for applications to the DCF being refused were:

 when an applicant has not met with criteria as set out in the DCF policy (64%)

 when an applicant has submitted an application for a resettlement award but is not 
being supported by one of the verifying partners who supports applicants to resettle 
and assists in making an application to the DCF (13%)

 when an applicant does not have a live benefit claim and therefore cannot be means 
tested to ensure they do not have the means to address their own needs (10%)

5,256 individual items were awarded over the 2016/17, with single bed frames, single 
mattresses, bedding items, fridges, crockery and cutlery being the most requested items 
for support when resettling.

Page 11



4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

The following chart shows the spend on some of the highest value items provided by the 
scheme.

Chart 1 – Spend on highest value items

Unredeemed awards

There are a number of occasions when awards have been made and applicants do not 
redeem the award. Over the year, 72 awards with a total value of £18,344 were not 
redeemed by applicants. Cancelled awards are usually due to the item no longer being 
needed, or on delivery it is found that the applicant already has the item.

An Emergency Energy award expires if it has not been used within a month of allocation, 
as it is no longer considered to be an emergency need.

The total fund spend on awards made to residents in 2016/17 was £267,593; this is a 
£26,690 increase from 2015/16 (£240,903).

The graph below shows spend on awards throughout the life of the scheme. It highlights 
a peak mentioned in last year’s report (likely due to fraud which was addressed 
accordingly), and shows how the spend has levelled since Quarter 3 2014/15, showing 
fairly consistent figures.

Page 12



4.11

4.12

Graph 1 - Spend on awards made to residents from 2013/14 to 2016/17

The following table shows the fund spend across the quarters and compares with spend 
for the previous year. The last two columns show the percentage of spend broken down 
in to resettlement and emergency awards (these are predominantly emergency 
household energy awards). 

Table 2 - Fund spend across the quarters and compares with spend for the previous two 
years.

Average % of spend
Quarter / Year Spend Resettlement Emergency Awards

2016/17 62,302 95% 5%Q1 2015/16 51,429 93% 7%
2016/17 69,334 96% 4%Q2 2015/16 53,186 92% 8%
2016/17 72,975 96% 4%Q3 2015/16 72,869 95% 5%
2016/17 62,982 93% 7%Q4 2015/16 63,419 94% 6%
2016/17 267,593 96% 4%Full year 2015/16 240,903 92% 8%

Ward Information 

The following table shows the applications submitted to the DCF over 2016/17 and the 
successful and refused applications by ward areas.

Page 13



4.13

4.14

4.15

Table 3 – Applications received, successful and refused by Ward area

Ward Received Successful Refused

Withdrawn, 
Cancelled, 
Incomplete

Central Rochdale 221 148 (67%) 61 (28%) 12 (5%)
Kingsway 125 85 (68%) 35 (28%) 5 (4%)
Milkstone and Deeplish 116 75 (65%) 36 (31%) 5 (4%)
Balderstone and Kirkholt 115 80 (70%) 35 (30%) 0 (0%)
Smallbridge and Firgrove 107 68 (64%) 34 (32%) 5 (5%)
North Heywood 90 58 (64%) 29 (32%) 3 (3%)
Spotland and Falinge 87 53 (61%) 33 (38%) 1 (1%)
Hopwood Hall 75 50 (67%) 18 (24%) 7 (9%)
West Heywood 73 46 (63%) 21 (29%) 6 (8%)
West Middleton 71 46 (65%) 22 (31%) 3 (4%)
East Middleton 60 46 (77%) 9 (15%) 5 (8%)
North Middleton 56 43 (77%) 12 (21%) 1 (2%)
Castleton 51 30 (59%) 20 (39%) 1 (2%)
Bamford 36 20 (56%) 13 (36%) 3 (8%)
South Middleton 35 27 (77%) 6 (17%) 2 (6%)
Healey 32 23 (72%) 8 (25%) 1 (3%)
Wardle and West Littleborough 23 18 (78%) 4 (17%) 1 (4%)
Littleborough Lakeside 14 10 (71%) 4 (29%) 0 (0%)
Milnrow and Newhey 14 10 (71%) 4 (29%) 0 (0%)
Norden 1 0 (0%) 1 (100%) 0 (0%)

Total 1402 936 (67%) 405 (29%) 61 (4%)

Please note: the data in the above table differs slightly from Table 1; this is due to the data being drawn from a ‘live’ system at a 
different time.

The above data shows most applications were received from the Central Rochdale ward, 
with the least being received from Norden. Wardle and West Littleborough had most 
successful applications.

It is worth noting, if a Ward area has a higher number of applications made by verifying 
partners (applications for resettlement), the quality and quantity of information included in 
the application is likely to result in a successful application. Therefore, the percentage of 
successful applications for a Ward area may depend on the type of application being 
made to the scheme.

Equality and Diversity

The DCF invites applicants to complete an Equality and Diversity Section 
within the application; although this is not a mandatory section of the 
application. From the information gathered from 1,364 applicants, the data 
shows that the fund is mainly accessed by applicants aged between 22 and 35 
years old (47%).The fund continues to have a fairly equal split across male 
and female applicants applying to the DCF; 54% female and 46% male. 

Page 14



4.16

4.17

4.18

Of the 1,364 applicants who have completed the diversity section of the application, 820 
(60%) were single and 524 (38%) were lone parents; again this is comparable to 
information collected throughout the life of the scheme. 82.5% of those who completed 
the section were White British.

The Innovation Fund 2016/17

In 2016/17 the Innovation Fund grant funded a number of small community projects from 
the local welfare provision budget. Grant funding was awarded to the following 
organisations:

The Bond Board: ‘Quids in’ financial workshops
The Bond Board delivered financial education workshops private-rented sector tenants; 
these included completing financial-health checks, raising debt awareness and 
managing existing debt. They also provided advice on welfare reforms.

Petrus: Petrus Volunteering#
The funding enabled Petrus to increase its capacity to deliver and support volunteering 
opportunities by extending the fixed term contracted Volunteer Development Manager 
post for another year. The focus was on engaging users into meaningful activities, 
developing capacity for self-support and enabling residents who wanted to make the 
move towards becoming job ready.

Citizens Advice Bureau: Complex welfare benefits and debt advice and support for 
people with life changing or long term health conditions
The nature of the assistance was dependent on need, but focussed solely around 
welfare, benefits, housing, money advice, employment, debt advice and budgeting skills.

The Bond Board: Financial Re-engagement Worker in the Private Rented Sector
The project focussed its resources on adults facing chronic exclusion who have 
no/limited current engagement with services, those who were unable or unsuitable to 
engage in financial group work and who had multiple needs including: debt, benefit 
problems, food and fuel poverty, poor health, homelessness, substance misuse and lack 
of employability skills.  The project built on the achievements of the Welfare Progression 
Coach model funded by the Innovation Fund previously.

The British Legion - Rochdale Veterans Breakfast Hub
The Breakfast Club is managed by local veterans for local veterans. The Breakfast Club 
promoted the services available in this one stop shop for the Armed Forces family.  

Once again, the Innovation Fund projects have been a great success and of real benefit 
to some of the borough’s most vulnerable residents. Appendix 1 gives more details. The 
Innovation Fund 2017/18 will continue to support the above projects for a further 12 
months.

Rochdale Food Bank 

3,670 vouchers were presented to Rochdale Food Bank throughout 2016/17. The 
emergency food packages provided meals for a total of 7,180 residents; 4,683 adults 
and 2,497 children. 2015/16 saw a decrease in people accessing the food bank, but this 

Page 15



4.19

4.20

4.21

4.22

4.23

year the figures return to a similar level to 2014/15.

Table 4 – Meals provided by Rochdale Food Bank

Benefit delays, Benefit changes and low income were the main reasons residents gave 
when accessing the food bank. This is comparable to the data collected throughout last 
year.

Heywood Food Bank

Throughout 2016/17 Heywood Food Bank provided meals for a total of 16,052 people; 
10,204 adults and 5,848 children.

Low income was the main reason residents gave when accessing the food bank; 1,615 
stated this as the reason for their need to access emergency food.

Middleton Food Bank

Middleton food bank is not currently in a position to receive funding.

Alternatives Considered

No alternatives have been considered.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

5.2

The DCF put £100,000 forward as a saving for the 2016/17 financial year.

The carry forward for 2016/17 was £787,000, which was added to the 
£300,000 committed by Cabinet members; a total budget of £1,087,000.

Page 16



5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

The total cost of providing local welfare provision for 2016/17 was £484,173; 
this includes the awards made to residents, grant funding to the community 
projects, funding contributions to the food banks, contract costs for the 
provision of the DCF and internal administration. 

The DCF secured a small amount of Welfare Reform funding from the
Department of Work and Pensions and an amount from Public Health;
although this has been used as substitute funding and the reserve carried
forward is £621,373.

A budget pressure of £220,000 is built in to the current assumptions for
2018/19 to enable the scheme to continue with its current level provision.

A report is due at Cabinet in September 2017 to recommend further funding 
contributions to continue the current provision levels throughout 2018/19 and 
fund the scheme from 2019 onwards; otherwise the provision will cease.

Risk and Policy Implications

No risks are associated with this report.

There are no personnel implications arising from this report.

6.1

6.2

Consultation

7. Not applicable.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. DCF policy www.rochdale.gov.uk/crisisfund

For Further Information Contact: Helen Bellis 
helen.bellis@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 92 4460

Page 17

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/crisisfund
mailto:helen.bellis@rochdale.gov.uk


Appendix 1 – Innovation Fund Projects

     ‘Quids in’ financial workshops  2016/17

 484 individuals attend financial education group-work 
 Completed 431 Financial Health Checks  
 Helped 484 private tenants apply for a total financial gain of £116,047.37 this 

equates to an average gain of £239.76 per person in this financial year

The Bond Board delivered 26 Workshops throughout 2016/17. The workshops 
covered topics around financial inclusion, budgeting in the private rented sector, 
money saving apps and websites, income maximisation, accessible bank accounts.

Living Well officers attend, offering blood pressure tests and other basic medical 
advice; some residents who attended have identified health problems, visited their GP 
and have received treatment which has prevented further use of emergency health 
services.

A worker from MIND also attends to advise of the services they offer. They chat to all 
attendees, to help improve mental wellbeing and to involve attendees in different 
activities, so as to extend their social interactions and help with social isolation. 

Case studies – (names have been changed)

1. Carol is 68 years old. She came to the group with a friend. She was suffering 
from Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease, mobility issues and depression. 
She had been to an advocate service to see if she could claim any benefits, but 
they told her she was not entitled to anything. Carol had been a council worker 
and received a pension. We applied for Attendance Allowance for her which is 
non means tested. She was awarded the lower rate at £55.10 per week 
backdated two months which is helping with transport costs and help from a 
cleaner.

Financial gain for first year £2,865.20

2. Joanne was first contacted by the Bond Board as she was subject to benefit 
cap and living in a flat with her four children. She had health problems that 
meant she could apply for Personal Independence Payment which in turn 
would exempt her from the benefit cap. Joanne was awarded PIP Daily Living 
£82.30 per week. PIP mobility £21.80 per week plus Severe Disablement 
Allowance £74.65 per week to be reviewed in three years. We have also 
helped her move into a three bedroomed house in Milnrow near to schools with 
a garden for her children.

Financial gain for three years £27,885.00

Page 18



Petrus: Volunteer report April 2016 – April 2017

Project Outcomes 

 Over the past 12 months we have worked with over 200 volunteers (across Petrus 
Incredible Edible Rochdale (PIER), Community store, Petrus Hub, Middleton Hub, 
Rochdale shopping exchange, recruitment, annual satisfaction survey, female 
befrienders, fundraising events and community engagement)

 Across the above projects, volunteers are providing an average of 205 hours per 
week. 

 The Petrus community store volunteer team were nominated and recognised at the 
Rochdale CVS annual volunteer awards.

 PIER has successfully secured funding of almost £35,000 through various small 
bids and grants and including £10,000 from the Tesco bags of help project for 
which customers vote for local community projects.

 Volunteers supported us to fundraise over £4,000 through several activities 
throughout the year.  

 8 individuals with significant barriers to employment successfully completed at 
bespoke Warehouse level 1 course at the Petrus community store.

 A programme of training for all volunteers has been rolled out training over 50 
volunteers.

 We continue to offer supportive volunteer placements through the Mencap Step Up 
project which allows young people with learning difficulties and an offending 
background to reach their potential. This has been a strong partnership which has 
resulted in some very positive outcomes for the young people involved.

 We continue to work with ‘NCS the challenge’ engaging young people into 
volunteer activities in their local area. 

Candidates from the Warehouse level 1 
course receiving certificates from their 
Mantra learning tutor. The course was 
bespoke to the Petrus community store 
and provided a relevant employability 
course to individuals who have struggled to 
access or engage with mainstream 
opportunities. The course was very 
successful and enjoyed by all. 

Page 19



The project aimed to maximise people’s income by ensuring they are receiving the 
appropriate benefit support, advice and payments they were entitled to.

Project Outcomes

Outcome May – Sept
 2016

Oct 16 – 
March 2017

Total Target 

No. of 
individuals 

advised

108 128 236 150

Increase in 
household 

income (annual)

£190,503 £236,162 £426,665 £150,000

Debt re-
scheduled

£36,465 £33,371 £69,836 £100,000

Case Studies:

1. Mr B was referred to the service via the foodbank. He was single, spoke no 
English and had had no income at all for some months. He suffered from a 
number of both physical and mental health problems and had been relying on a 
friend to help him. 
We  were able to establish that Mr B had his ESA terminated some months 
earlier but the decision had not been challenged and he had not claimed an 
alternative benefit. We were able to help Mr B submit a late challenge to the 
ESA decision, known as a mandatory reconsideration. Whilst the outcome for 
his Mandatory reconsideration was awaited we were able to assist Mr B with a 
claim for Job Seekers Allowance, enabling him to have an income for the first 
time in months and we continue to support him with his benefit entitlements. 

2. Ms C is disabled and a lone parent of a 6 year old child who is also disabled. 
We were able to identify a potential entitlement to Disability Living Allowance 
(DLA) for the child. After helping Ms C complete the DLA form, she was 
awarded both components of the benefit at the higher rates, equating to 
£139.75 per week. In addition, the DLA award allowed Ms C to claim Carers 
Allowance for looking after her child resulting in an additional £34 to her weekly 
income in the form of a Carer’s Premium.

Comment from a client:

“I would like to thank the CAB for changing my finances and hence my life.” 

Citizens Advice Bureau: Complex welfare benefits and debt 
advice and support for people with life changing or long term 
health conditions

Page 20



The British Legion - Rochdale Veterans Breakfast Hub

Project Outcomes:
 an average of 27 members of the Armed Forces family attend each week
 74 individuals have attended the Rochdale Veterans Breakfast Club
 9 Armed Forces charities have attended the Breakfast Club to work with 

attendees, these have included the Royal British Legion, Veterans in 
Communities and the Parachute Regimental Association. 

 we have held a veterans Christmas lunch at Rochdale Town hall as part of the 
Rochdale Veterans Breakfast Club. Over 100 veterans attended the Christmas 
lunch.

 a special remembrance breakfast was held on 11/11/16 prior to the service at 
the Cenotaph; and 

 the Rochdale Veterans Breakfast Club now forms the backbone of the 
Rochdale Armed Forces family network. For two hours on a Thursday morning 
veterans, dependants, widows, wives, husbands, charitable organisations and 
the MOD come together.

Case Study

I have been attending the Rochdale Veterans Breakfast Club since it began last year 
and I am happy to outline the benefits that I have gained and the difference it has 
made to my life as requested.

When I initially started to attend the Breakfast Club my daughter and I were 
experiencing a number of personal difficulties which had resulted in us becoming 
isolated, the only interaction we had in addition to each other was my mother who was 
in a care home with advanced Dementia. However, that soon changed thanks to the 
welcoming and inclusive atmosphere at the Breakfast Club and we became regular 
attendees.

The benefits were many, not only did we start to get out of the house once a week on 
a Thursday morning for a breakfast with like-minded people who made us feel like 
family, but our social circle grew, we both became members of the Rochdale Hornets 
Wheelchair Rugby Team and I secured a full time job working for a veterans charity 
helping other veterans.

In the last 12 months I have seen many new people come through the doors and each 
one that I have spoken to has had nothing but positive comments to make about the 
venue, the setup, the organising and the opportunity to meet up with other veterans.

I would like to take this opportunity to say a huge thank you to all who have had a 
hand in both the development and the weekly running of Rochdale Veterans Breakfast 
Club. It has quite literally changed my life for the better and I’m sure it has done the 
same for many others too. As such, I am always happy to promote the Breakfast Club 
to new potential members and I would like to offer any assistance I can should you 
need it.

Page 21



The Bond Board: Financial Re-engagement Worker -Private Rented Sector

The Financial Re-Engagement Worker has worked with more complex and chaotic 
tenants who live in the private rented sector and who are not comfortable in accessing 
support or engaging services. 

 Total number of clients – 85

 Total financial gain £76,938.12

Case Studies 

1. B and D

This chaotic couple were in a privately rented property twith a rent of £380.00 
As a couple they were entitled to the Local Housing Allowance for Rochdale at 
£363.61. At the end of their first six month tenancy agreement the landlord put 
the rent up to £425.00 per month. The couple were claiming Universal Credit 
with a joint income per month of £395.20 plus housing costs of £364.00. This l
eft them with a rent shortfall of £61.00 per month which when paid reduced 
their joint income to just £77.12 per week. We have supported them to move 
into a new flat that is at the LHA rent meaning they have no top up of rent and 
also within a newly converted property which is more energy efficient, making it 
all round more affordable for them. They have now started working with our 
new Progression Coach who works with 18-24 year olds and they have now 
engaged in apprenticeship seminars and to training to support them into work. 

2. H was referred to the Bond Board in June 2014 as she was fleeing harassment; 
we rehoused her and offered initial resettlement support. In July 2016 we were 
contacted by her letting agent to say her Housing Benefit had stopped. Contact 
was made with her and we discovered her Employment and Support Allowance 
had also been stopped. Due to mental health issues she felt unable to sort this 
out this without help. The “Mandatory Reconsideration” deadline had been 
missed, so had to go straight to appeal; after three months this appeal was 
upheld and she got her benefit backdated.  Her rent payments were also 
backdated preventing eviction.

Financial gain £4,939.38

Page 22



Report to Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Date of Meeting Wednesday 21st June
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Housing & Environment
Report Author Caroline Wolfenden
Public/Private Document Public

Directorate Plans 2016-17 Quarter 4 Performance Update

Executive Summary

1. To report progress at the end of Quarter 4 (1st April 2016 – 31st March 2017) 
towards achievement of the targets contained in the Neighbourhoods 
Directorate Plan 2016-17.   

Recommendation

2. (i) The report be noted
(ii) Any issues identified by Members, requiring further attention and/or 

action be notified to the appropriate officer for attention at the earliest 
opportunity.

Reason for Recommendation

3. In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework, 
progress towards the targets contained in directorate plans are to be reported 
to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each quarter

Key Points for Consideration

4. Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2016-17 Progress

The Quarter 4 progress report for the Neighbourhoods Directorate is attached 
at Appendix 1. Actions within the appendix have been colour coded in 
accordance with the following criteria.

Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the 
target date 

Amber: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the 
target date due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s 
control 

Green: Action completed by the target date 

Page 23

Agenda Item 8



The appendix includes a commentary against actions that are showing red or 
amber.

Performance Overview
Four actions did not achieve target, three actions have a RED status whilst the 
other action has an Amber status. The chart below shows the overall 
performance of the Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 
Four

24

1
3

GREEN 85.71%

AMBER 3.57%

RED 10.71%

Performance Issues 
The three red actions relate to:

 Launching of the new place branding project and Rochdale brand – 
Delayed, all branding materials for the project are now updated and 
a new communications group has met to discuss strategies and 
how best to promote the borough.

 Formulating a 5-10 year Residential Growth Strategy for the 
borough which links into the Greater Manchester Place Initiative – 
Delayed, Work has commenced to prepare a Draft Site Allocations 
Plan document for consultation in Autumn 2016. This will identify 
land for the 7,360 additional new homes which will need to be 
brought forward to meet the Borough housing needs over the Core 
Strategy plan period until 2028.

 Continuing to work with RBH to deliver on the promises made to the 
Council and tenants within the stock transfer agreement – Rochdale 
Boroughwide Housing had completed 49 promises by 31st March 
2017. There is one outstanding promise which RBH is aiming to 
deliver by June 2017.  (The promises referred to are the “Annual 
review of service standards with tenants”. The service standards 
reviewed relate to Grounds Maintenance, Caretaking, Empty 
Homes, Responsive Repairs and Maintenance, Anti-Social 
Behaviour Service and Neighbourhoods.)

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan:
Summary of performance against actions

Page 24



The one amber action relates to:
 Completing development of new communications strategies to 

improve external and internal communications – Delayed, the new 
council communications strategy has now been drafted and in the 
final stages of preparation before being presented to Leadership 
and Members.

Alternatives Considered

Not Applicable

Costs and Budget Summary

5. Not Applicable

Risk and Policy Implications

None 6.

Consultation

7. Not Applicable

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 
2016-17

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale Ol16 1XU

For Further Information Contact: Caroline Wolfenden  

Page 25



Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2016-17 
Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New. v4 Page  1  Of  6 15 May 2017

Appendix 1

NICC002 Launch of the new place branding project and Rochdale brand 30 June 2016  
Objectives: Promote the borough as a good place to live, work, invest and visit 
The new Rochdale Ambassadors scheme launched on 24 March 2017 at an event attended by almost 100 local businesses. All branding 
materials for the project are now updated and a new communications group has met to discuss strategies and how best to promote the borough.

NP017 Formulate 5-10 year Residential Growth Strategy for the borough 
which links into the Greater Manchester Place Initiative

31 March 2017  

Objectives: Promote regeneration, investment and housing growth across the borough and meet the housing needs of local people
Work has commenced to prepare a Draft Site Allocations Plan document for consultation in Autumn 2016.  This will identify land for the 7,360 
additional new homes which will need to be brought forward to meet the Borough housing needs over the Core Strategy plan period until 2028.  
The Core Strategy includes a target to bring forward 80% of this housing requirement from brownfield sites and the Council is working with 
landowners, housebuilders and the Homes and Communities Agency through Government initiatives and funding streams to accelerate the 
delivery of homes from sites within the urban area.  The Allocations Plan consultation will likely include further marketing of Council and privately 
owned sites for residential development to evidence how the Core Strategy can be met from the delivery of existing sites across the Borough. 
With Officer support from the Council, the HCA and developers are acquiring land within the Borough to develop a portfolio of quality housing 
sites to meet the Borough target of 460 new homes per annum.  

NP020 Continue to work with RBH to deliver on the promises made to 
the Council and tenants within the stock transfer agreement.

31 March 2017  

Objectives: Promote regeneration, investment and housing growth across the borough and meet the housing needs of local people
RBH had completed 49 promises by 31st March 2017. There is one outstanding promise which RBH is aiming to deliver by June 2017

NICC003 Complete development of new communications strategies to 
improve external and internal communications

31 December 2016  

Objectives: Promote the borough as a good place to live, work, invest and visit 
The new council communications strategy has been drafted and is in the final stages of preparation before being presented to leadership and 
members. The communications team has also organised a Local Government Association (LGA) health check visit which will make an 
independent assessment of the council’s communication activity.

P
age 26



Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2016-17 
Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New. v4 Page  2  Of  6 15 May 2017

Appendix 1

NP014 Work in partnership with land owners and developers to bring 
forward a supply of good quality housing sites, to increase the number 
of new homes built across the borough and explore alternative funding 
models

31 March 2016 

Objectives: Promote regeneration, investment and housing growth across the borough and meet the housing needs of local people

NP006 Maintain and review Transport Asset Management Plan 30 September 2016 
Objectives: Maintain and develop the asset portfolio for infrastructure of roads and bridges in the Borough

NP005 Submission of Outline Business Case and planning application 
for Junction 19 Link Road 

31 October 2016 

Objectives: Maintain and develop the asset portfolio for infrastructure of roads and bridges in the Borough

NICC007 Delivering efficiencies and improvements to improve value for 
money, including co-location of core corporate functions, pursuing new 
delivery models, shared service opportunities and integration into GM, 
delivery of a specific plan of shared ICT services with Oldham Council 
and an ambitious vision for the immediate future

30 November 2016 

Objectives: Improve value for money and customer satisfaction by continually improving and streamlining business processes and modernising customer access

NP001 Deliver the Environmental Management Improvement Plan which 
will oversee the successful delivery of a number of objectives 
including: • Delivery of a borough-wide spring clean campaign,  • 
Additional street cleansing resource in priority areas,  • Raise standards 
across the borough, • Raising the profile of key gateways,   • New 
specification of street cleansing and ground maintenance,   • Trade 
waste compliance within our town centres and shop fronts,  • Improved 
customer access and business processes to increase efficiency, and 
customer responsiveness• Provision of clear and accurate information 
for customers and members..      

31 December 2016 

P
age 27



Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2016-17 
Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New. v4 Page  3  Of  6 15 May 2017

Appendix 1

Objectives: Deliver high quality public realm and universal environmental management services
.

NP007 Improve our roads, footpaths bridges and structures and 
increase the percentage of roads that are of an acceptable standard

31 December 2016 

Objectives: Improve value for money and customer satisfaction by continually improving and streamlining business processes and modernising customer access

NP019 Develop new 3-year Homelessness Strategy 31 December 2016 
Objectives: Promote regeneration, investment and housing growth across the borough and meet the housing needs of local people

NP011 Deliver annual asset improvement programme to Council 
buildings and other Council owned assets.

28 February 2017 

Objectives: Improve value for money and customer satisfaction by continually improving and streamlining business processes and modernising customer access

NICC001 Support the Safer Communities Partnership to reduce crime 
and anti-social behaviour in the borough

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Work with partners to make the borough a safer place

NICC004 Develop ways to improve access to services for local people 
and communities so that people can use them more easily and more 
quickly, leading to improved satisfaction 

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Improve value for money and customer satisfaction by continually improving and streamlining business processes and modernising customer access

NICC008 Delivery of an ICT refresh programme to enable a productive 
workforce across the Council and wider public access to ICT

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Improve value for money and customer satisfaction by continually improving and streamlining business processes and modernising customer access

NP002 - Improve Recycling Performance and levels of householder 
participation through public engagement and behavioural change 
campaigns 

31 March 2017 

P
age 28



Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2016-17 
Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New. v4 Page  4  Of  6 15 May 2017

Appendix 1

Objectives: Deliver high quality public realm and universal environmental management services 

NP003 Support devolution of Street Services to individual Townships 
through provision of a decision making framework fed by a Quarterly 
Township resource and performance report

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Deliver high quality public realm and universal environmental management services

NP004 Work with third sector partners to develop a model to set-up a 
Parks Trust type management framework in one or more of our Parks 
and Open Spaces

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Deliver high quality public realm and universal environmental management services

NP009 Develop a profitable customer focused trading arm delivered 
from the Town Hall and Number one Riverside, supporting Service 
users, the public and both assets 

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Deliver an excellent facilities management services for the benefit of the Council and local people   

NP010 Increase  public accessibility of Town Hall delivering an 
improved services via a diverse portfolio of activities and events 
underpinned by a strong growing business to meet year on year 
financial  income targets

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Deliver an excellent facilities management services for the benefit of the Council and local people   

NP012 Deliver the Schools Capital Programme 31 March 2017 
Objectives: Improve value for money and customer satisfaction by continually improving and streamlining business processes and modernising customer access

NP015 Encourage new private homes and development of sites for 
affordable housing and delivery of the Empty Property Programme to 

31 March 2017 

P
age 29



Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2016-17 
Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New. v4 Page  5  Of  6 15 May 2017

Appendix 1

maximise the Council’s New Homes Bonus allocation 
Objectives: Promote regeneration, investment and housing growth across the borough and meet the housing needs of local people

NP016 The provision of a more diverse housing offer, including an 
expanded choice of larger and higher value dwellings (council tax band 
E and above i.e. >£250k property value), to help retain existing, and 
attracting new, higher income earning households to underpin the local 
economy

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Promote regeneration, investment and housing growth across the borough and meet the housing needs of local people

NP018 Explore options to deliver Town Centre housing 31 March 2017 
Objectives: Promote regeneration, investment and housing growth across the borough and meet the housing needs of local people

NP013 Robust monitoring of the street lighting PFI contract to ensure a 
high standard of lighting whilst reducing the Council’s energy 
consumption. 

31 July 2016  

Objectives: Deliver high quality public realm and universal environmental management services

NICC006 Create a cross-functional hub (Centre of Excellence) research 
and intelligence function to improve access to data and intelligence as 
an aid to decision-making

31 August 2016  

Objectives: Managing information and business intelligence to support decision-making and policy development 

NICC005 Deliver the Connected Council Programme to build the 
technological capability needed to deliver digital services across the 
whole Council

31 March 2017  

Objectives: Improve value for money and customer satisfaction by continually improving and streamlining business processes and modernising customer access

P
age 30



Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2016-17 
Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New. v4 Page  6  Of  6 15 May 2017

Appendix 1

NP008 Explore a range of alternative delivery models with other Local 
Authorities and our Partners

31 March 2017  

Objectives: Explore and develop alternative delivery models for service delivery

P
age 31



Report to Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Date of Meeting Wednesday 21st June 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Business, Skills & 
Employment

Report Author John Searle
Public/Private Document Public

Directorate Plans 2016-17 Quarter 4 Performance Update

Executive Summary

1. To report progress at the end of Quarter 4 (1st April 2016 – 31st March 2017) 
towards achievement of the targets contained in the Economy Directorate 
Plan 2016-17.   

Recommendation

2. (i) The report be noted
(ii)  Any issues identified by Members, requiring further attention and/or 

action be notified to the appropriate officer for attention at the earliest 
opportunity

Reason for Recommendation

3. In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework, 
progress towards the targets contained in directorate plans are to be reported 
to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each quarter

Key Points for Consideration

4. Economy Directorate Plan 2016-17 Progress

The Quarter 4 progress report for the Economy Directorate is attached at 
Appendix 1 and the RDA Delivery Plan Report at Appendix 2.  Actions within 
the Appendix 1 have been colour coded in accordance with the following 
criteria.

Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the 
target date 

Amber: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the 
target date due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s 
control 

Page 32

Agenda Item 9



Green: Action completed by the target date 

The appendix includes a commentary against actions that are showing red or 
amber.

Performance Overview
Three actions did not achieve target, one action has a RED status whilst the 
other two have an Amber status. The chart below shows the overall 
performance of the Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the end of 
Quarter 4. 

21

2 1 GREEN 87.50%

AMBER 8.33%

RED 4.17%

Summary of Economy Directorate performance 2016/17
The Directorate includes the following functional areas:

- Strategic Asset Management
- Jobs and Skills
- Economic Growth and Business Support
- Planning
- Building Control
- Rochdale Development Agency (RDA) client

Rochdale Development Agency’s performance is also included in the report 
as a separate document and in the Directorate Report where the RDA is 
delivering projects on behalf of the Council e.g. Rochdale Market and 
Rochdale Riverside or providing a service for the Council e.g. business growth 
support.

During the financial year 2016/17, performance has been good on the majority 
of the performance measures approved by Members in the Directorate Plan. 
These are listed as ‘green’ in Appendix 1. Highlights include:

- The improvement in supply of high quality new business units including 
the 216,000 sq ft speculative unit at Kingsway Business Park, 2 new 
units at Heywood Distribution Park with one let.

- Approval of an Asset Development Fund so that Council can do direct 
development over the next 4 years.

- Budget surplus achieved for the Council’s investment properties
- Planning applications submitted for two major developments in the 

Page 33



borough: 1)the new link road at Junction 19 and accompanying 
employment and residential development, and 2) Rochdale Riverside.

- Income of £1.1m from planning applications, £150k above the target.
- Eleven external funding bids were successful to support priorities in the 

borough including tackling rogue landlords, regeneration work on Lower 
Falinge and College Bank and encouraging the use of online services. 
Support provided to external organisations to bid for funding e.g MIND 
with a successful £341k Lottery Fund bid for activity in the borough

- Delivering contracts to help improve skills and employment levels in the 
borough. These regularly top the national and regional performance 
tables. To date this has made a financial surplus for the Council.

Performance measures that have not been met are listed in Appendix 1 as red 
(x1) or ambers (x2), with commentary about the performance. The one red 
measure is the boroughs employment rate which had fallen during the year 
and made a slight recovery at the end of the year, but still below the target 
set. Employment levels remain a significant challenge for the borough and 
there is an increasing number of borough residents of working age who are 
economically inactive, particularly those who are classed as long or short term 
sick. A new area of work in 2017/18 across Greater Manchester is to support 
those in work who have a health condition to remain in work. 

The two amber rated performance measures relate to town centre project 
which have experienced delays which has resulted in the end of year 
performance targets not being met.  In Middleton, there have been delays to 
the Long Street Methodist School project and officers are supporting the 
voluntary group with the grant documentation. In Rochdale Town Centre, the 
project to relocate the market has experienced delays with finalising the 
contractual relationship with the selected market operator, Quarterbridge, and 
in agreeing the necessary servicing and loading arrangements. These matters 
will be resolved in early 2017/18.

The Directorate’s activities contribute directly to income for the Council, 
increases in the value of the local economy measured by GVA (Gross Value 
Added), and business rates etc which in 2016/17 have resulted in:

- Secured £7.4m of external funding for the borough
- Attracted £31.3m of private sector investment in the borough
- Helped almost 600 borough residents to move into employment
- Earned £5.3m  income to the Council with an additional £1.4m of 

business rates growth
- £24.3m of GVA from development activity
- £9.1m additional GVA from residents moving into work 

Conclusions 
Monitoring shows that progress is being made in delivering against targets in 
the Directorate Plans for 2016-17

Alternatives Considered
Not Applicable

Page 34



Costs and Budget Summary

5. Not Applicable

Risk and Policy Implications

None 6.

Consultation

7. Not Applicable

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Economy Directorate Plan 
2016-17

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale Ol16 1XU

For Further Information Contact: Caroline Wolfenden  
Caroline.wolfenden@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 35



Economy Directorate Plan 2016-17

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New. v4 Page  1  Of  6 26 April 2017

1001a Provide the Skills and Employment support to local residents to 
obtain and remain in employment including supporting apprenticeships 
at higher levels.

31 March 2017  

Objectives: Increase the number of local people into employment (and increase employment rate in the Borough)
Over the year, the number of borough residents in employment has significantly fallen by 5800 (3500 fewer employed and 1700 fewer self-
employed).  This is the lowest in Greater Manchester. The number of out of work benefits claimants rate has increased slightly by 0.1% over the 
year, an additional 100 residents. The official measure of unemployment shows Rochdale is 8th place in Greater Manchester, ahead of 
Manchester and Salford. There have not been any large scale (100 jobs+) redundancies in the borough this year, so it not easy to explain the 
significant decrease in employment but contributing factors can be, the reduction in support for self-employment, including benefit changes, 
smaller scale redundancies e.g Beales, B&Q, and public sector and employed residents moving out of the borough...Employment projects to 
support residents into employment are performing on or ahead of targets. The Working Well programme to support those with health conditions 
into work has supported 128 people into sustained (6 months +) employment. New jobs have been created in the borough during the year 
supported by RDA and The Council and efforts are made to ensure borough residents are well placed to get these jobs. E.g. the Employment 
Links Team are managing the recruitment for a recent inward investor to Heywood (Kleeneze) and the target is for 80% of the jobs to be gained 
by unemployed borough residents. Progress as at the end of March is 100% borough residents with 80% previously unemployed.

1008b Complete the proposed heritage and public realm projects, 
specifically including the Rochdale River reopening scheme and the 
Middleton Townscape Heritage Initiative.

30 June 2016  

Objectives: Increase the quality and best use of the Borough’s Heritage assets
The River Roch reopening scheme was completed in May 2016.  The scheme won several awards during 2016 including a national Royal Town 
Planning Institute (RTPI) for Planning Excellence in the Natural Environment and a joint regional award from the Royal Town Planning Institute 
(RTPI) and Institute of Historic Building Conservation (IHBC) for the NW Conservation Project of the Year 2016.  Work to complete the Middleton 
Townscape Heritage Initiative with a number of projects completed including 23-25 Market Place and works on site at The Exedra and 51-53 
Rochdale Road.  The biggest project is the Long Street Methodist School and there has been a delay with the voluntary group submitting 
information necessary for the grant request.  Officers have worked with the group to address these delays.  Architects are preparing tender 
documents and listed building consent approved.  The Council is negotiating an extension to the project with the Heritage Lottery Fund to enable 
the completion of this project during 2017/18. The Council has commissioned a structural survey of Hopwood Hall to inform an agreed schedule 
of repairs with Historic England.  A grant application for funding will be made during 2017/18.  Options for an enabling development on Council 
owned land around Tonge Hall have been developed and soft market testing taking place with developers and Historic England.

1006c Relocate the Rochdale outdoor market to its permanent location 
and prepare options for an indoor market.

31 March 2017  

Objectives: Improve the Borough’s Town Centre’s and especially make significant progress towards construction of Rochdale TCE
A planning application for the development of a new outdoor market on The Butts was submitted in late 2016.  The procurement process of an 
external market operator is complete and Quarterbridge have been selected to operate the market. The Council has acquired the Santander 
property to provide a small indoor market. Repair and adaptation works to the building are underway.  The servicing and loading arrangements 
for the market are still being finalised. 

Appendix 1

P
age 36



Economy Directorate Plan 2016-17

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New. v4 Page  2  Of  6 26 April 2017

1002 Support local business growth and promote inward investment 
through a programme of targeted marketing:

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Increase the value of inward investment

Ref Name Due
 Identify a portfolio of target 

companies across the 
Borough for an Account 
Management strategy for 
Local Businesses and then 
implement the strategy

1002b 31 July 2016  

 Prepare and implement a 
Marketing Strategy (to 
attract inward investors).

1002c 31 July 2016  

 Increase lead generation 
aimed towards Target 
Sectors

1002a 31 March 2017  

1003b Promote and improve a portfolio of high quality residential 
development sites including British Vita in Middleton.

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Increase the land brought  forward for residential & employment development (Council and private sector land)

1003c Present the case for “investing to save” in the Council’s property 
portfolio, in order to bring forward sites for disposal or regeneration.

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Increase the land brought  forward for residential & employment development (Council and private sector land)

1003d To promote and improve a portfolio of competitive, high quality 
Business Parks and Industrial Estates.

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Increase the land brought  forward for residential & employment development (Council and private sector land)

P
age 37



Economy Directorate Plan 2016-17

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New. v4 Page  3  Of  6 26 April 2017

1004a Sustain and improve the rental income from the investment 
portfolio.

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Maximise income generation for the Council (capital and revenue)

1004b Support external funding bids (internal RBC) and completion and 
promotion of The Funding Centre. 

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Maximise income generation for the Council (capital and revenue)

1004c Maximise Council income through increased planning and 
building control fees, capital receipts from land and property disposals, 
business rates growth, Planning Performance Agreements, S106/CIL 
contributions, development briefs and other sources of income.

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Maximise income generation for the Council (capital and revenue)

1005 Implement and monitor the actions and targets set out in the 
Council’s Asset Strategy including specifically proposals to undertake 
an Investment Strategy.

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Increase effectiveness and efficiency of Council assets portfolio and make it fit for purpose

1006a Reduce vacancies in the Town Centre’s by providing support to 
new businesses through business rates relief schemes and targeted 
support.

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Improve the Borough’s Town Centre’s and especially make significant progress towards construction of Rochdale TCE

P
age 38



Economy Directorate Plan 2016-17

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New. v4 Page  4  Of  6 26 April 2017

1006b Make significant progress in the delivery of Town Centre East 
including:

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Improve the Borough’s Town Centres and especially make significant progress towards construction of Rochdale TCE

Ref Name Due
 Genr8 to submit the 

planning application.
1006b (ii) 31 August 2016  

 Complete the land 
acquisition and relocation 
strategy and demolition 
required to deliver the 
cleared TCE development 
site.

1006b (i) 31 December 2016  

 Genr8 to secure additional 
pre-lets

1006b (iii) 31 March 2017  

 Develop proposals for Phase 
2.

1006b (iv) 31 March 2017  

1006d Support new investment opportunities and environmental 
improvements in the Town Centres.

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Improve the Borough’s Town Centre’s and especially make significant progress towards construction of Rochdale TCE

1007a Deliver the Council’s statutory responsibilities as Lead Local 
Flood Authority.

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Improve and protect the quality of our built and natural environment

1007b Manage the physical environment of operational assets, ensuring 
that properties are increasingly fit for purpose and maintained in 
accordance with statutory and health and safety requirements.

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Improve and protect the quality of our built and natural environment

P
age 39



Economy Directorate Plan 2016-17

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New. v4 Page  5  Of  6 26 April 2017

1007c Support and promote investment and environmental 
improvement schemes at key gateways and corridors within the 
Borough.

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Improve and protect the quality of our built and natural environment

1008a Work with the public/private sector to develop long term 
strategies for the commercial use of the Heritage assets including 
Rochdale Town Hall, Tonge Hall, Hopwood Old Hall, relocation of Fire 
Service Museum and the East Lancashire railway extension into 
Castleton.

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Increase the quality and best use of the Borough’s Heritage assets

1009a Collaborate with GMCA/GM Districts on the preparation of the GM 
Spatial Framework and 2040 Transport Strategy.

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Contribute to and benefit from GM Strategies/policies/funding

1009b Support the estates requirements of the GMCA/One Public Estate 
agenda.

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Contribute to and benefit from GM Strategies/policies/..funding

1010a Maintain Planning Performance above local and national targets 
for planning services.

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Deliver high quality and effective services that exceed Council and national targets

1010b Ensure existing commercial employment contracts perform well 
and new opportunities identified.

31 March 2017 

Objectives: Deliver high quality and effective services that exceed Council and national targets

1003a Secure adoption of the Core Strategy. 30 September 2016  
Objectives: Increase the land brought  forward for residential & employment development (Council and private sector land)

P
age 40



Economy Directorate Plan 2016-17

Action Plan Due Date Status

Directorate Plan New. v4 Page  6  Of  6 26 April 2017

1001b Attract more and better quality jobs into the borough and retain 
existing sources of employment, working with local partners to ensure 
that local people are accessing the employment opportunities being 
created. 

31 March 2017  

Objectives: Increase the number of local people into employment (and increase employment rate in the Borough)

P
age 41



1

RDA Quarter 4 2016/17 Delivery Plan Report

1. Investment & Marketing 

Key 
Priority 
No

Work Area Lead Timing
Action   

A. Lead Generation aimed towards Target Sectors

CN Sep Research target sectors to identify industry trends, key players and location drivers
Prepare lead generation strategy, marketing plan and campaign approach for each sector

Create sector propositions and sector-based marketing material 

Obtain list of companies in target sectors in Greater Manchester, West Yorkshire and East 
Lancashire

Deliver proactive company contact and communication programme to sector-based 
businesses

 Sector propositions have been created by consultant for advanced manufacturing 
(including textiles, engineering, and food and drink) and logistics. 

 Options for target company lists and delivery of proactive marketing campaign will be 
developed in 2017/18 (Q1).

 Company contact and communication programme will now be delivered in April 2017. 

2 Development of key sectors 
to produce investment 
leads:

 Manufacturing, inc. 
textiles

 Logistics
 ICT
 Food & drink

CN Dec Develop relationships with 10 local businesses, multipliers, and others involved in each 
sector

 Team has good relationships with more than 20 manufacturing businesses, ten logistics 
businesses, and two ICT companies. 

 These relationships will be developed and extended in 2017/18.



2 Work alongside agents and 
other professional advisors 
to promote the positive 

CN/MW Aug Develop portfolio of key messages and case studies to share with partners

 Key messages will be developed from the sector propositions in 2017/18 (Q1).



P
age 42



2

Key 
Priority 
No

Work Area Lead Timing
Action   
 Two case studies have been prepared for advanced manufacturing, and two for 

companies at Kingsway Business Park. More to follow throughout 2017/18. 
 Place Board work has brought together representatives from around 90 businesses to 

promote the Borough and generate positive messages about Rochdale. 
CN Sep Identify 5 key agents (Manchester based and more local ones) to build relationships with 

 Team has regular contact and good relationships with more than ten property agents. 
 These relationships will be developed in 2017/18 to support work of the team.



CH/CN Dec Hold one agent event to share information and help promote opportunities across the 
borough

 Plot H Launch for around 35 property agents carried out in June.
 Launch for Plot K at Kingsway held in January attracting 40 industrial agents.
 RDA sponsorship secured for Logistics event for property sector in June 2017.



messages about the 
borough and generate new 
enquiries

CN Aug Identify key professional advisors that may work with companies in the borough and develop 
a communications strategy to promote Rochdale to them 

 List of ten professional companies and advisors in Rochdale created. 
 Options for working with these advisors will be developed in 2017/18 (Q1).
 Meeting held with Pro-Manchester to discuss membership and working together.



CN Jul Review activity of Investment and Marketing Team to determine how resources can best be 
used to achieve inward investment and business growth in target sectors in the borough. 

 Team review meeting held in March.
 Collaborative working with Partners increased throughout the year (MIDAS, Growth 

Hub, etc).
 Further consideration of effectiveness of current activity to be made in 2017/18 (Q1).

2 Respond to target sector 
enquiries, particularly those 
with high levels of 
investment, employment 
generation and retention 
(including apprentices) and 
provision of improved skill 
levels

MW/CN ongoing Review online property search service and whether this can be improved to support the 
team.

 New website improves property search service.
 Tractivity to be used for all enquiries from April 2017.



P
age 43



3

Key 
Priority 
No

Work Area Lead Timing
Action   

Team Ongoing – 
RDA offer

Focus time and effort on those enquiries within the target sectors, where there will be the 
biggest economic impact

 Pipeline of enquiries from target sectors being managed by the Team.

Ensure businesses made aware of the local funding opportunities that exist at the time of 
their move/expansion

 RBC grant and business rate relief scheme is discussed with appropriate growing 
businesses with many receiving support.

 Appropriate referrals to partner organisations who can support training and 
development have been made throughout the year - ELP, Business Growth Hub and 
Rochdale Training in the main.



CN Aug Develop appropriate economic data to help support relocation decisions e.g. labour market 
information, local wage rates etc.
 Regular monitoring of available data – working with MIDAS.
 Developing information for use to support sector propositions will be undertaken in 

2017/18 (Q1), with the support of a location consultant and MIDAS. 



B. Account management of local businesses 
CH Dec Create a database of leading Rochdale businesses based upon turnover, employment, and 

sector.

Identify 50 businesses to be targeted for account management and undertake research into 
each one

Develop a ‘call and care’ programme of activity to engage with these businesses  - target one 
per month 

 Work is now being combined with the Place Board activity following the launch event on 
24th March with over 50 top companies added to the account management programme.

2 Identify a portfolio of top 
companies across the 
borough

CH Mar Create an account manager group to include RBC Chief Executive and senior council officers, 
who will be participating in the programme. Establish coordination and management of the 

P
age 44



4

Key 
Priority 
No

Work Area Lead Timing
Action   
programme.

 Visits with Leader and Chief Executive have taken place throughout the year.
CH Mar Launch account management programme, monitor progress, and review.

 Linked to activity above.



All Mar 17 Use Tractivity as a fully integrated client management system to record all business 
interactions

 Tractivity now used for all company interactions.



2 Targeted business support 
through the Business 
growth hub advisor

CH Ongoing – 
RDA offer

Promote the Business Growth Hub advisor and the joint offer around business support.

 Attended the Rugby Club and Football Club networking events and did presentations to 
businesses throughout the year.



2 Promotion of new and 
existing sector networks

CH/RP Mar 17 Develop a manufacturing network encouraging businesses to share best practice and learn 
from each other

Bring a specialist facilitator on board to ensure the events run smoothly and businesses feel 
empowered to participate

 Manufacturing Network set up in 2016 and first meeting held 17th Jan at Holroyds 
including a factory tour.



CH/CN Jul 16 Quarterly update meetings with MIDAS to be reviewed and new ways of sharing information 
and working together to be explored.  

 Ongoing dialogue about individual MIDAS enquiries.
 Review meeting held 24 Feb with Allison and Andrew.
 Working with MIDAS on visiting companies from account managed list.



CN/MW Aug 16 Develop relations with sector managers at MIDAS and other business support bodies, to 
share information about Rochdale businesses. Explore opportunities to work together.

 Ongoing dialogue with MIDAS officers.



2 Closer links to the GM 
group of companies, in 
particular MIDAS and the 
Business Growth Hub

CN/MW Sep 16 Develop relations with researcher at MIDAS and other business support bodies, to identify 
information sources and establish key data for supporting the promotion of Rochdale as a 

P
age 45



5

Key 
Priority 
No

Work Area Lead Timing
Action   
business location. 

 MW attends MIDAS Systems Working Group meeting, the next meeting is in 
April.

 Ongoing dialogue with MIDAS researcher regarding information and business 
data.

 Fed into the Food and Drink Sector Analysis tender issued by MIDAS in 
February.

CH/CN Aug 16 Relations with Manchester Growth Company and GM Chamber to be reviewed to explore 
opportunities for working more closely together on key sectors and in promoting Rochdale as 
a business location. 

 Referrals taking place and good joint working evident. 
 New Partnership Manager for the Growth Hub has visited and next team 

Rochdale meeting has been planned for June.



C. Marketing strategy – to attract inward investors

CN Sep Use input from Lead Generation marketing plans to create an overall marketing strategy for 
promoting Rochdale that links the work on target sectors and with professional advisors.

 Research underway to support Marketing Strategy.
 Place Board work compliments this.
 Development of marketing strategy will be undertaken in 2017/18 (Q1). 



CN Sep Devise suitable campaign branding to promote Rochdale as a priority business location

 Approach to campaign branding will be reviewed in in 2017/18 (Q1).
 Launch of Place Branding project supersedes requirement for sector marketing branding.



2 Prepare and implement a 
new marketing strategy for 
businesses in our target 
sectors

CN Sep Build a network of five or more partner organisations, and businesses, that will support the 
marketing strategy and contribute to it.

 Approach to involving partner organisations will be reviewed in in 2017/18 (Q1).
 Launch of Place Branding project may have an impact on sector marketing work – 10 

businesses sit on the steering group.



P
age 46



6

Key 
Priority 
No

Work Area Lead Timing
Action   
 Working with Zen and Tetrosyl and a number of other businesses on marketing group as 

part of Place Branding project.
CN Sep Review best practice on location promotion from other areas to develop and improve the 

marketing strategy in 2017 and in subsequent years. 

 This activity will now take place in 2017/18.



MW/CN Aug Create a communications plan for the promotion of Rochdale as a business location; to 
include the use of social media, and the generation of regular content to be shared with 
social media followers.

 Communication plan template created and continually updated – Perfect Circle 
issued numerous social media releases throughout the year.

 Monthly review meetings held with Perfect Circle ongoing for 17/18.
 Review of current activity was undertaken in February.
 Revised plan for 2017/18 will be developed in 2017/18 (Q1).



MW Aug Develop social media channels and build connections with those that will support the overall 
marketing campaign – using third party suppliers to support the development of the 
campaign as required.

 RDA social media plan launched – twitter account, July 2016.
 RDA social media plan has been created. Will continue to monitor and update 

monthly to link in with regular monthly review meetings with Perfect Circle.



2 Increased usage of social 
media to support campaign

MW Aug Develop a programme of social media activity

 Social media plan template agreed. Monthly updates provided.



2 Structured approach to 
press releases and positive 
PR

Team Mar 17 Minimum of 12 positive press releases a year

Work with businesses to help with their promotion, arranging senior management visits 
where appropriate

 22 press releases have been issued during the year.



P
age 47



7

Key 
Priority 
No

Work Area Lead Timing
Action   

2 Work in partnership with 
the Place Brand initiative

CH/CN Mar 17 Work with Rochdale Council’s Place Brand lead to share consistent messages, and to make 
use of the initiative where it can benefit the promotion of Rochdale as a business location, 
whilst retaining the RDA brand
 Place Board meeting and launch undertaken by the team during 16/17.
 2 meetings of Place Board members held in early 2017.
 Launch event held on 24th March at Zen Internet – 90 participants.



CH Feb 17 Work with the group to identify possible categories for entries, based on identified target 
sectors

 Ceremony took place 4th Nov with 300 guests in the Great Hall.

2 Work with Rochdale 
Business Awards steering 
group

Team Mar 17 Secure  sponsorship or entries from targeted businesses 

 Sponsorship obtained from range of local businesses with work already commenced for 
the 2017 event.



P
age 48



8

2. Business Parks 

Key 
Priority 
No

Work Area Lead Timing
Action  

A. To promote and improve a portfolio of competitive, high quality Business Parks and Industrial Estates including (but not limited to):  

RD Sep Work with Kingsway Partnership to secure physical completion of the “Kingsway 216” 
development
 Kingsway 216 was completed in August 2016. 
 Agents held an event in January 2017 and continue to market the site but there is 

currently no occupier identified. 



RD Mar 17 Work with Kingsway Partnership to secure physical completion of Plot K development
 The Plot K development completed in December 2016.
 Agents held an event in January 2017 and continue to market the buildings but there are 

currently no occupiers identified.  



CN/RD Mar 17 Work with Kingsway Partnership to secure occupants for 2 of the 5 speculative units
 Brochure and website created for Plot K and agent launch took place in January 2017.
 Agents continue to market both sites but currently no occupier identified. 



RD Mar 17 Work with Kingsway Partnership to submit planning applications for 2 new buildings across 
the Business Park     
 A planning application was approved for 73 new homes as a second phase of the David 

Wilson Homes scheme and a start on site has been achieved.  This phase is branded as a 
Barratt development and there are 13 reservations already secured.

 A planning application for the extension of the JD Sports distribution warehouse was 
approved in December 2016 and work commenced February 2017.



RD Dec Work with Transport for Greater Manchester to secure the continuation of the Kingsway Link 
bus service for 2017/18 and beyond
 Financial cover has been achieved for 2017/18 and the early months of 2018/19 with 

contributions from JD Sports and David Wilson Homes. 
 Discussions with other occupiers are ongoing to seek further funding.
 TfGM have indicated informally that they would like the Link Bus to continue for a 

further two years (2018/19 and 2019/20) subject to funding availability.



3 Kingsway Business Park

RD Sep Agree a strategy and action plan with the Homes and Communities Agency for Dixon Green 
and Silver Hill Farms   

P
age 49



9

Key 
Priority 
No

Work Area Lead Timing
Action  
 HCA have appointed external advisors to develop an exit strategy for their involvement 

in the farms. The results of this work will be provided in 2017/18.      
MW/RD Mar 17 Work with Commercial Estates Group and other landowners to improve the offer at Stakehill 

and secure further lettings 
 CEG owned units are 100% let. 
 Howard Tenens have completed the refurbishment of Unit 30 and are close to letting the 

entire building.  
 Approximately 400,000 sq ft of employment floorspace (excluding Tenens) has been 

refurbished during 2017/18  and is currently on the market with strong interest in the 
former Aldi unit.

 A further 300,000 sq ft will refurbished in early 2017/18 and is expected to be back on 
the market by the autumn.



RD Mar 17 Implement an agreed security solution at the Whitbrook Way entrance to the Stakehill 
Industrial Estate 
 RBH have provided a quote for installing a monitored CCTV system on the Estate. The 

next steps are to consult with businesses and property owners including seeking 
permission to mount cameras on some of these buildings. 

 The cameras will be installed in summer 2017.



RD Dec Implement a programme of environmental upgrades in the central green corridor around 
Whit Brook    
 A previously overgrown Public Right of Way was reinstated to improve access through 

the Central Green Corridor.  
 Prices are being sought for installing picnic benches on the central green space in Spring 

2017. 



RD Mar 17 Work with CEG to implement a consistent and coherent signage strategy across the Estate      
 New signage was installed across the site with the remaining totem signage to be 

installed by the end of May 2017. 



3 Stakehill Industrial Estate

MW/RD Dec Deliver an occupier event
 RDA are working with the Business Growth Hub to deliver an occupier event in 2017. 

Planning for the event will start in April.



3 Various business parks in 
the South Heywood 
Employment Area, 
including the creation of a 

DC/RD Dec Work with partners to secure submission of a planning application for a new link road and 
Outline development between the M62 and Pilsworth Road 
 A planning application was submitted by Russell Homes in November 2016 and is 

currently being considered by Rochdale Council Planners.



P
age 50



10

Key 
Priority 
No

Work Area Lead Timing
Action  
 A promotional / lobbying strategy is currently being devised by RDA, RBC, Russell Homes 

and their communications consultants.
DC/RD Mar 17 Agree heads of terms for the legal agreement between the Council and the developer for the 

Junction 19 Link Road scheme to secure funding for the scheme  
 Heads of Terms were issued in April to RH.
 Put on hold until after the determination of the planning application following advice 

from Counsel.



CN/MW Mar 17 Work with agents to promote the portfolio of business parks located in Heywood, notably 
the speculative units on Hareshill and HDP, and secure occupiers for each
 Kleeneze have taken a 100,000 sq ft unit at HDP.
 HDP is now around 90% occupied, Hareshill and Birch are fully let (other than the new 

Link 95 unit completed in summer 2016, and Broadfield is close to being fully let.
 RDA/RBC supporting HDP as a location for Project Grande – 350,000 sq ft D&B project. 
 Units are put forward to enquiries as appropriate.



new road link to the M62  

RD  Mar 17 Work with partners to secure legal agreements, discharge planning conditions and resolve 
other outstanding matters to enable the installation of a wind turbine at Birch Business Park 
in 2017/18
 An option agreement has been signed between RBC and the landowner which will 

secure the site until May 2017.
 However The American wind turbine supplier, Ogin, have hit financial trouble and the 

project looks likely to be shelved in early 17/18.



B. Proactively encourage new investment in sites and premises by:

DC Dec Secure a Development Fund working with partners within the Economy Directorate and 
Finance
 Approval agreed at Cabinet meeting in July 2016. 



DC/RD Sep Identifying opportunities to bring publicly owned sites to market
 A list of sites has been prepared and progress has been made on the design of a small 

units scheme for the first site – Dodgson St – and planning permission has been granted.
 Feasibility work has now commenced on other sites. 



3 Undertaking Direct 
Development

DC/RD Dec Prepare financially viable direct development schemes for 3 council owned sites across the 
Borough
 A list of sites was approved at the DDM in August (including Dodgson Street, Oldham 

Road/ Durham Street (Bradferns), Plot V at Kingsway and Kelvin Avenue). 



P
age 51



11

Key 
Priority 
No

Work Area Lead Timing
Action  
 Tender prices have been received for construction of the Dodgson Street units and work 

will commence in April.
DC/RD Dec Submit a planning application for 1 direct development scheme  

 Planning application for Dodgson Street units was approved November 2016. 
DC/RD Mar 17 Commence the construction of the first direct development 

 Start of work on the Dodgson Street scheme has been programmed for April 2017. 
DC/RD Dec Work with site owners / developers to establish the financial and commercial viability of 

development on one stalled site
 Work has taken place to identify opportunities for the last plot on Crown Business Park 

and on Kingsway on various plots.
 Significant work has been undertaken with private developers at the former Mossfield 

school site in Heywood.



DC/RD/CN Mar 17 Assisting site owners / developers to access appropriate financial assistance from the Council 
and other sources to support private sector investment in 2 sites
 Manufacturing company has secured financial assistance for their expansion at Gorrells 

Way, which will enable them to increase their workforce. 
 Planning approved for redevelopment of Hilton Point in Middleton to provide 48,000sqft 

of warehouse and office for an owner/occupier.



3 Working with the private 
sector to bring forward 
unviable or stalled sites 
and deliver development

RD Mar 17 Assisting property owners / occupiers to submit a planning application for redevelopment – 
target number is 1
 Planning approval was granted to PIN Properties for the refurbishment of the former 

Woolworth property in Castleton.     



 C
N/DC/RD

Dec  Work with property owners / developers to establish the financial and commercial 
viability of redevelopment or refurbishment of 2 existing premises
 Work has been undertaken with RCD Leaflets to secure their relocation to previously 

vacant premises at Lincoln Close.
 Tetrosyl have recently relocated into refurbished premises in Rochdale Town Centre.     

3 Supporting the private 
sector to deliver high 
quality redevelopment and 
refurbishment of existing 
premises

 R
D

 M
ar 17

 Assisting property owners / occupiers to submit 2 planning applications where 
necessary 
 Planning application approved for refurbishment of Unit 30 Stakehill Industrial Estate.
 RDA worked in partnership with the private sector to secure the submission and 

subsequent approval of the planning application for the JD Sports extension at Kingsway 
Business Park.



P
age 52



12

Key 
Priority 
No

Work Area Lead Timing
Action  

 C
N/RD

 M
ar 17

 Work with property owners/ developers to carry out refurbishment works on 2 
existing commercial buildings across the Borough
 PIN properties have refurbished the former Woolworths building in Castleton.
 Refurbishment of Newgate House, Rochdale completed in December. 



 C
N

Mar 17 Assisting property owners / occupiers to secure appropriate financial assistance from the 
Council to support private sector investment in premises and job creation – target number is 
2 
 Financial assistance for inward investment company to connect two office 

properties at Sandbrook Office Park and convert them for their own use.
 Rochdale company secured financial assistance to refurbish Halfpenny Bridge 

Works.
 Inward investment company received a grant towards fit out of a photographic studio 

within their unit on Heywood DP.



C. Support development along major gateway

CN/MW Dec Work with the owners of Crown Business Park to promote the available land and vacant 
property with the aim of securing 1 new occupier   
 Crown has been offered as a D&B solution to industrial enquiries.
 Development appraisal for speculative scheme has a significant funding gap that is 

preventing the small unit scheme from going ahead.



RD/CN Mar 17 At Royle Works, assist the owner to develop a viable scheme which is fitting for a key 
gateway site and work towards submitting a planning application
 Difficult to engage the owner of this site.
 Advised that progress is being made and owner is working on clarifying the position on 

planning, surveys and development costings, however no sign of activity on site.



3 A627M from its junction 
with the M62 including 
Crown Business 
Park, Sandbrook and the 
former Royle Works

RD/CN Mar 17 Work with the owners of the Sandbrook Office Park to agree a strategy for the remainder of 
their site   
 Northern Trust meeting held in July but offices not viable in the current market.



RD Sep Secure possession by agreement of the car park land required for the new road at Lincoln 
Close 
 Following the sale of property at Lincoln Close, the land required for the proposed road 

has been secured by Rochdale BC.

3 Rochdale  Station Gateway 
(Lincoln Close Access Road, 
development sites along 
Oldham Road/Lincoln St

RD Dec Work with RBC Highways to commence construction of the new road at Lincoln Close 
 RBC Highways Design & Construction team is in the process of agreeing service 

P
age 53



13

Key 
Priority 
No

Work Area Lead Timing
Action  

diversions and associated costs.
 When this is completed, works will commence on site, which is likely to be mid-2017/18.

DC/RD Mar 17 Secure a developer for the Lincoln Street development site 
 The site has been identified as the next direct development under the Asset 

Development Fund. Focus will switch onto this site once the Dodgson Street 
development has progressed sufficiently.  



DC/RD Dec Produce a development masterplan for the Oldham Road Corridor
 Initial discussions held with Planning and Housing officers at Rochdale Council.    
 This action will be carried over into next year. 



P
age 54



14

3. Town Centres

Key 
Priority 
No

Work Area Lead Timing
Action  

A. Reduce vacancies in all Town Centres

LR Jun Promote and implement the year three extension and the expansion of the scheme into 
Heywood and Middleton town centre
 Since launch there have been eleven applications, one has withdrawn and one has been 

refused, eight have been approved.   There is still a lot of interest in the scheme interest 
and the possibility of more applications coming forward soon. 

 Eight of these applicants have now opened.



LR Jun Work with the Council’s Communications Team to promote the scheme to potential 
occupiers, landlords & investors
 Grant publicised in local papers.
 Promotion of the schemes to be reviewed and updated.



LR Jun Support potential occupiers, landlords & investors to submit applications and provide 
bespoke advice in a timely manner.
 Engaged with landlords and agents to understand requirements to enable them to 

submit applications.



LR Jun Monitor enquiries and the success of the scheme by reviewing vacancy levels on a quarterly 
basis
 New Rochdale Town Centre boundary established with TCM.
 Work with TCM to share data and provide quarterly updates.



6 Business Rates Reduction 
Scheme and associated 
business support initiatives 
for Rochdale, Heywood and 
Middleton designed to 
encourage the re-
occupation of vacant retail 
properties

LR Jul Confirm and implement the shopfront & start up grant scheme for Independent Traders, 
including scope, criteria and eligibility of the scheme
 Scheme launched in 2016.
 One application received and approved.
 Awaiting promotion update from RBC Comms Team.



B. Rochdale Riverside  

6 Deliver the new retail and 
leisure development –

GD Nov Work with Genr8 to secure further occupiers for the scheme  
 M&S, Next and Reel have all formally signed up to the scheme and other potential 

P
age 55



15

occupiers are in negotiation. 
 It is hoped to make further announcements in Spring 2017 once legal agreement are 

completed.
GD Nov Work with Genr8 to finalise the programme, scheme appraisal and cost plan

 The scheme programme will continue to be updated to reflect the latest position.
 The costs and the appraisal will be finalised once detailed design is complete.  



GD Nov Work with Genr8 to satisfy the pre-conditions of the legal agreements (site assembly, 
lettings, viability, planning and funding) to allow the scheme to start on site in 2017 
 Site assembly is being progressed.  A revised appropriation has been confirmed. 
 M&S, Next and Reel have all formally signed up to the scheme and other potential 

occupiers are in negotiation.  
 The planning application is expected to be determined in April 2017.   
 The approach to the funding market has commenced.



GD Nov Work with Genr8 to finalise other related legal & financial matters 
 Work is on-going to ensure Council’s obligations under the legal agreement are satisfied. 

Rochdale Riverside

GD Mar 17 Work with Genr8 to establish the proposals for Phase 2 of the scheme  
 Phase 2 options are currently on hold pending progress on Phase 1, however funding has 

been identified from Phase 1 to progress Phase 2.



GD Jul Complete the relocation of the remaining tenant in Telegraph House and secure vacant 
possession of the building 
 Telegraph House demolition is complete.



GD Aug Ensure that the Council obtains Good and Marketable Title to the Property
 Discussions well advanced with the PCT and HCA to remove restrictions on title.  A 

revised appropriation has been confirmed. 



Complete the land 
acquisition, including the 
demolition of Telegraph 
House

ER Dec Tender the contract and complete the demolition of Telegraph House 
 Demolition is complete. 

GD Jun Support Genr8 to progress detailed design in order to submit a detailed planning application 
for the scheme during summer 2016
 The planning application was submitted in November.   



6

Submit the Rochdale 
Riverside planning 
application 

GD Nov Confirm and implement the necessary road closure & TRO requirements for the scheme 
 The road closure & TROs will be progressed following the planning approval. 

C. Rochdale Town Centre 

6 Create a relocated indoor 
and outdoor market

GD Jul Secure Council approval to the preferred option for the outdoor and indoor market 
 The preferred option on The Butts and the adjoining former Santander building has been 

confirmed by Cabinets.  



P
age 56



16

JHi Dec Confirm the design & layout of the outdoor market, secure planning permission and ensure 
its establishment on The Butts 
 The planning application was submitted in November and is due for determination in 

April – delays from the EA and Highways have held things up.
 The design of the highways loading scheme has been confirmed.



JHi Oct Confirm the operating model, lease arrangements and business case for the outdoor and 
indoor markets 
 The procurement process to appoint an external market operator is complete.  The 

Council recently announced it intends to appoint Quarterbridge to take forward the 
redevelopment of Rochdale’s new market.  Quarterbridge were selected following a 
formal procurement process in January.

 Contract discussions ongoing – conclusion expected in April.



JHi Mar 17 Start implementation of the acquisitions strategy for the indoor market and associated shop 
front scheme 
 The Santander building was purchased by the Council.  Surveys of the property are 

complete and phase 1 strip out work is complete. Works to fit out the property and to 
renew roof to be tendered.  

 Progress on the outdoor market has been put on hold pending completion of the indoor 
market.



ER Jun Work with RBC to complete the detailed design and confirm the programme and costs
 Paving to The Walk and Lower Yorkshire Street is complete.
 Baillie Street work is expected to complete in May 2017. 
 Additional paving on Lords Square has been included and agreed with the Exchange 

Shopping Centre. 

6 Public Realm improvements 
(The Walk, Baillie Street 
and lower Yorkshire Street)

ER Aug Coordinate the implementation of the scheme & undertake consultation and liaison with 
businesses  
 All businesses visited re road closure and delivery times. 
 G4S have been allocated a place to park for deliveries to banks etc. 
 The construction company have a dedicated liaison officer to work with affected 

businesses as the work progresses. 
 There will be a need to liaise with M&S as works near completion to discuss their click 

and collect service no longer being available due to no access. 



GD Oct Work with RBC Highways to prepare Phase 2 of the Highway Movement Framework
 Phase 2 review will be undertaken as part of the Rochdale Riverside implementation. 6 Implement Highways 

Masterplan 
GD Sep Support Highways to complete town centre car parking review 

 A comprehensive town centre parking review is on-going (led by RBC Highways).  

P
age 57



17

GD Nov Support RBC Highways & Planning to secure the necessary TROs and highway closures 
needed to accommodate the Rochdale Riverside scheme
 The road closure & TROs will be progressed  ollowing the planning approval.



D. Middleton Town Centre 

RD/CH Sep Liaise with the Warwick Mill owners to support their proposals for the re-use of the building
 The owners of Warwick Mill have confirmed that the project remains on hold and an 

alternative residential scheme is being explored. The reason for this is the lack of clarity 
on any future trade deals between the UK and the European Union, which could result in 
trade tariffs for goods leaving the UK. 

 Building has been vandalised and an update meeting with representatives from G-Suite 
has been arranged for early April.



RD Mar 17 Work with RBC Planning and the Warwick Mill owners ensure that the scheme maximises its 
linkages with Middleton town centre 
 The importance of linkages has been emphasised in discussion with the owners and this 

is reflected in the alignment of public openings in the building fabric.  



RD/CH Oct Work with the Warwick Mill owners to develop a programme of key marketing activities to 
promote the development to potential investors and customers
 See note above regarding timetable.



RD/CH Sep Support the owners to ensure that the local supply chain and contractors are utilised 
wherever possible so that the scheme delivers maximum benefit for Rochdale and Greater 
Manchester residents.
 The importance of local labour has been raised throughout the feasibility and design 

process with the owners.    



6 Warwick Mill 
Redevelopment

RD/CH Mar 17 Work with MIDAS to promote this project on a regional and national scale to maximise the  
economic development benefits of this substantial inward investment 
 See note above regarding timetable.



MW/RD Mar 17 Coordinate the tender process and confirm the costs for the property improvements
 Tender process complete in June 2016, costs reported to the Middleton Regeneration 

Group.



MW/RD Sep Secure occupier and landlord consent for the property improvements 
 Tenants made aware of the proposed improvement works in Summer 2016.
 All consents from property owners have been received.



Public Realm Investment 
around Middleton Triangle 

MW/RD Dec Implement the agreed public realm and paving improvements during summer 2016   
 Contractor appointed for the paving works. Paving works started 11th July and complete 

October 2016. 
 Jackson & Jackson appointed to undertake the property improvement works. Contractor 



P
age 58



18

visited occupiers prior to start on site 17th October. 
 Property improvements mainly completed in February, snagging works continue.
 Positive press release circulated. 

E. Rochdale Town Hall

NE Mar 17 Continue to work with partners and stakeholders to ahead of Round 1 announcement.
 Regular engagement through project newsletter.
 Video now produced and will be used to promote project in future.
 Additional consultation and meetings to understand match funding have been held.
 Successful visit from HLF Trustees on 7th March.



JHi April 17 Preparation of revised Stage 1 HLF bid - develop strategy for fundraising programme and 
detailed business planning
 Revised bid submitted that has taken account of HLF advice, responded to the feedback 

from 1,000 stakeholders during the consultation process. Further consultation on the 
plans will take place in the spring with a decision due in May.

 Fundraising strategy being developed and discussions taken place with major funders 
including Arts Council England and HLF. 



JHi Nov Preparation of RIBA Stage 1 Design, including coordinated and updated proposals for 
structural design, building services, outline specifications and cost information
 Full condition survey has been undertaken by specialist conservation architects.
 Plans have been produced for the HLF bid to RIBA Stage 1 following consultation with 

Historic England and conservation team. Detailed cost planning (to RIBA stage 1) 
completed to understand costs and risks.



6 Implement the long term 
Town Hall HLF strategy

JHi Dec Submit Stage 1 application to HLF
 The revised bid was submitted on 1st December 2016 to the national board.
 A HLF trustee assessment visit has taken place in advance of their decision in May.



JHi Mar 17 Prepare phasing & action plans for short term adaptation & improvement works
 Kitchen & servery upgrade to enable more flexibility in serving both the Clock Tower 

Dining Room and catering for functions & events has recently been completed.
 Planned maintenance (RBC Property team) - continuing to undertake necessary repairs 

to roof above Great Hall, Council chamber, Magistrate’s corridor and Zodiac bar to 
prevent water damage.

6 Implement short term 
adaptation and 
improvement works 

JHi Mar 17 Coordinate implementation and spend on the works 
 Bi-monthly working group established and monthly budget monitoring meetings. 

6 Town Hall Square public 
realm and installation of 
Gracie Fields statue 

JB/JHi Aug Confirm the public realm works and programme for the Town Hall Square 
 Following discussions with Historic England and RBC conservation team, a design 

competition is being considered due to the significance of the immediate space. 



P
age 59



19

 An initial concept design and brief for the competition has been commissioned with the 
intention of launching it after the HLF funding decision for the Town Hall in May.

NB Sep Work with RBC to complete the detailed design & programme for the Phase 1 work and 
coordinate implementation (including statue and paving)
 Gracie Fields statue was installed in September.
 The public realm works now completed.



F. Heritage assets 

NE Mar 17 Support RBC to complete the Middleton Tonge Hall restoration project strategy
 RDA will provide project management and coordination support for the project.
 Meeting held with Historic England to understand scope of enabling development and 

works to remove hall from at EH Heritage At Risk Register.
 Work with Planning to structure the project has taken place.



NB Mar 17 Support RBC to bring forward the Hopwood Hall restoration project
 Scheme currently managed by RBC Planning service.  RDA to support the project 

following the submission of the Town Hall HLF bid.



NE Mar 17 Support RBC to complete the Station Gateway masterplan and bring forward plans by the 
private sector to re-use the former Fire Station 
 RDA providing project management support to the Fire Service Museum to assist with 

Round 2 development phase.
 Potential for RMBC to become joint applicant to reduce VAT liability of project.
 Specialist design team procurement with STaR – tenders to go live at end of March.



6 Work with the 
public/private sector to 
develop long term 
strategies for the 
commercial use of the 
Borough’s heritage assets 

NB Mar 17 Support RBC to define and bring forward the East Lancs Railway project
 Scheme currently planned and managed by RBC Planning service with the aim to bring it 

under the RDA project management system in 17/18.



P
age 60



20

Performance Indicators Target
 for B&I 
Team

Overall 
target for 
RDA 

Year end Status Commentary

Number of companies receiving support from 
Business Growth Hub

48 same 67


Dedicated Business Advisor post continues to work 
well within the team, with many joint visits 
undertaken.

Number of successful inward investment 
projects 

10 same 6  Whilst assisted businesses are low, we are aware of 
many other relocations that have taken place.

Number of local companies successfully 
relocating and/or expanding within the 
borough 

20 same 20


Number of jobs safeguarded/relocated by 
assisted companies 

350  same 386 
Number of new jobs created by assisted 
companies or projects 

250 same 442  Includes Kleeneze and Greenage projects which 
account for 213 jobs.

Total level of public sector investment 
secured or spent on RDA assisted projects 

£750k £6.5m £6.5m 
Total level of private sector investment 
generated by RDA assisted projects

£15m £23m £31.3m 

Key Activity Indicators 

Total number of enquiries 250 same 192


This doesn’t include any specific Kingsway enquiries 
which are monitored separately. There have been over 
70 such enquiries – many of which are from agents 
rather than the business direct.

P
age 61



21

Performance Indicators Target
 for B&I 
Team

Overall 
target for 
RDA 

Year end Status Commentary

No of enquiries receiving assistance 125 same 124 
No of companies account managed 80 same 79


Some of the businesses classified as having been 
account managed may well have started as an enquiry 
requiring assistance. There will be some duplication of 
names.

Amount of floorspace (m2) 
built 

20,000 40,000 39,000


Amount of floorspace (m2)
refurbished 

8,200 40,000 32,700


This includes some key inward investment including 
Howard Tenens on Stakehill and Barnes Logistics in 
Rochdale.

GVA created from Development Activity

Business Rates Growth £360k £1m

Number of Positive PR stories issued 20 20 22  Stories issued by Council Comms team. 

 

P
age 62



 

1 

           Item 4 
 

JOINT GMCA AND AGMA SCRUTINY POOL 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON FRIDAY 13 JANUARY 2017  
  AT MANCHESTER TOWN HALL 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
 Bolton Council    Cllr Debbie Newall 
 
Bury MBC     Cllr Roy Walker 
       Cllr Stella Smith 
        
Manchester CC    Cllr Ahmed Ali 
        
Oldham MBC     Cllr Colin McLaren 
       Cllr Cheryl Brock 
            
Rochdale MBC    Cllr Michael Holly 
      
Stockport MBC    Cllr Yvonne Guariento 
       Cllr Iain Roberts 
       Cllr John McGahan 
 
Tameside MBC    Cllr Gillian Peet 
       Cllr John Bell 
       
 Trafford MBC    Cllr Pam Dixon 
       Cllr Michael Young 
       Cllr Barry Brotherton 
        
Wigan MBC     Cllr John O’Brien 
 
IN ATTENDANCE 

 
 GMCA     Cllr Cliff Morris 
       Jim Taylor 
 
 SALFORD CC    Charlotte Ramsden 
 
 GM H&SC PSHIP    Lord Peter Smith 
       Warren Heppolette 
  

GMIST     Susan Ford 
       Nicola Ward 

 
        

 

Page 63

Agenda Item 10



 

2 

17/01  APOLOGIES 
 
Apologies were received from Cllr David Jolley (Salford), Cllr Kevin McKeon (Bolton), Cllr 
Neil Butterworth (Rochdale), Cllrs James Wilson and Zahra Alijah (Manchester) and Cllr 
Pam Stewart (Wigan). 
 
 
17/02 CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 
The Chair opened the meeting and welcomed all those present. 
 
 
17/03 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest in respect to any item on the agenda. 
 
 
17/04 MINUTES OF THE GMCA AND AGMA SCRUTINY POOL MEETING HELD ON 9 

DECEMBER 2016 
 

The Minutes of the GMCA and AGMA Scrutiny Pool meeting held on 9 December 2016 
were submitted for consideration. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
To approve the Minutes of the GMCA and AGMA Scrutiny Pool meeting held on 9 
December 2016. 
 
 
17/05 GMCA/AGMA SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME AND FORWARD PLAN 
 
Members received a report to review and amend the Work Programme for the Joint GMCA 
and AGMA Scrutiny Pool for 2016/17. 
 
Susan Ford, GMIST informed members that at their request officers were preparing a 
future scrutiny item on the current social housing status across Greater Manchester. 
 
Gemma Marsh, New Economy gave a verbal update on the work as a result of the 
recommendations made by the Employment and Skills Task and Finish Group in July 
2016, including – 

 Work commissioned through the European Social Fund (ESF) to provide advice 
and guidance to those young people who are not in education, employment or 
training (NEETS). 

 Targeted support to young people who are currently in school, but at risk of 
becoming NEET. 

 The introduction of a careers and enterprise scheme where schools have a 
coordinator to link businesses with the school and shape career advice.  The 
coordinator's role is also to work with the senior leadership team to build the 
capacity of young people as they reach employment age to ensure they have the 
desired skills for the GM labour market. 

Page 64



 

3 

 Ongoing work with the voluntary sector to their role in providing grass roots 
schemes (through ESF funding) for local residents. 

 A pilot has been launched to support young people accessing work through travel 
passes for apprentices.  This further supports the work of the ‘bike to work’ scheme. 

 The introduction of an Employer Engagement Framework to understand the skills 
need of employers and how devolution to GM could further assist with ensuring 
there is provision to support the growth of particular skills sectors. 

 
Members were pleased to see good progress across all the recommendations of the Task 
and Finish Group but asked how the sustainability of the schemes will be secured 
following Brexit and the changes to European Funding. In addition, to know how the 
success of the new interventions would be measured. 
 
Officers reported that through the work with senior leadership within schools there has 
been a change of mind set towards careers programmes which includes dedicated 
resources to support these schemes.  It is anticipated that this local approach will help to 
ensure the sustainability of programmes in the future. Current ESF programmes are also 
having sustainability plans built in to ensure their continuation, the latest statement from 
the Treasury indicates that all current EU funding is to be honoured.  GM are continuing to 
canvass for future Government funds to ensure the continuation of schemes. 
 
With regards to measuring success, a framework to monitor and track the progress of 
individuals is being developed which would identify all the interventions which have 
supported the learner. 
 
A member questioned how companies are linked with particular schools and whether there 
was even coverage of the scheme across GM.  Officers agreed to provide a list of schools 
and businesses who are involved with the Careers and Enterprise Scheme, but reported 
that all areas have schools which are engaged with the scheme, the majority of which are 
identified as serving disadvantage areas. 
 
Members further asked whether local career schemes are linked effectively to the Careers 
and Enterprise Scheme.  It was reported that the schemes work together to increase their 
reach and share lessons learnt. 
 
A member commented that devolution to GM offers a perfect opportunity to design a 
curriculum offer which businesses can also help to shape.  Officers reinforced that the 
scale of the 2018 Government budget is not confirmed, however the post 19+ education 
budget devolution offers the first opportunity to shape the curriculum against the desired 
skill sets. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. To note items for the 2016/17 Scrutiny Work Programme. 
 
2. To note the progress with Scrutiny’s Task and Finish work as set out in section 2 of the 

report. 
 

3. To provide a note to members detailing the schools and business partnerships created 
through the Careers and Enterprise Scheme. 

 

Page 65



 

4 

 
17/06 GM REVIEW OF SERVICES FOR CHILDREN 

 
Councillor Cliff Morris, GMCA Portfolio Lead for Children’s Services introduced a report 
which provided an update on the GM Review of Services for Children which formed part of 
the Greater Manchester Devolution Agreement. 
 
Jim Taylor, Lead Chief Executive for Children’s Services explained to the Pool that despite 
a number of political changes, that the review was still progressing and was further 
evidenced through a number of significant policy initiatives all contributing to the Children 
and Young Peoples agenda.  However, the GMCA wished to continue to progress the 
review recommendations to ensure that GM remains ahead of future policy development. 
 
In October 2016 GM submitted an investment plan and business case which was accepted 
by the Department for Education (DfE) and would be next taken to Ministers for decision.  
This would ensure the levels of investment needed to implement the outcomes of the 
review over the next three years. 
 
Charlotte Ramsden, Director of Children’s Services at Salford Council (and GM Lead 
DCS) reported that there was strong coordination between all GM local authorities and 
progress had already been made with regards to the outcomes of the review.  One of the 
areas of particular success was youth justice, where GM had created one vision and one 
system to more effectively and efficiently work with young offenders.  There had been 
significant collaboration with colleagues from other organisations regarding the Health and 
Social Care Locality Plans which also offered real opportunities for improving services to 
children and young people. 
 
A member asked about how the GM authorities engage effectively with Academy Trusts 
and Multi Academy Trusts.  Officers reported there were good relationships with Academy 
Trusts across GM, and their data is included with data for each local authority.  The DfE 
have assured that GM would be consulted on any further Academy or Multi Academy 
Trusts as their creation would impact further local decisions such as the Spatial 
Framework.  It was further reported that GM had influenced DfE with regards to the 
integration of Academy Trust data and would continue to work in partnership with the 
Regional Schools Commissioner to oversee the education outcomes for all children in GM. 
 
Members further asked who has the power and authority to intervene if an Academy or 
Multi Academy School was failing.  Officers reported that the Board of Governors would be 
the first to intervene and the future role of the local authority in relation to standards is 
currently under development by DfE.  The Regional Schools Commissioner still retains 
ultimate responsibility. 
 
A member asked whether the opportunities to link social and economic benefits through 
the Greater Manchester Challenge were still being utilised.  It was reported that following 
the success of the Greater Manchester Challenge scheme, opportunities still remain to 
further challenge and support the parts of the system which are struggling. 
 
Members of the Pool questioned how the DfE’s plan to reform the GM Safeguarding 
Children’s Board would impact the work of the local authorities.  Officers commented that 
the local Safeguarding Children’s Boards have a key role in safeguarding children within 

Page 66



 

5 

their local authority so they would retain their core business but there were some tasks 
which maybe more effectively done collectively at a GM level. 
 
A member asked whether the careers advice in GM was sufficient enough to give young 
people the building blocks needed to progress into the workplace, and if not, what GM 
were doing about it.  Officers reported that each school provides an individual level of 
careers advice and support, but nationally it is reported that there has been a squeeze on 
resources as a result of a crowded academic system.  The GM Education and 
Employability Board aims to share good practice, and develop links between schools and 
businesses but recognises that the broadening of the curriculum is the responsibility of all.   
 
Members further asked whether GM were concerned about the number of local authority 
children’s services being reported as inadequate.  The report references the national 
agenda which discusses what happens if a local authority falls into ‘inadequate’ and a new 
initiative which allows the intervention of the Secretary of State.  GM are building on their 
strong networks to reduce the risk of any of its local authorities falling into ‘inadequate’ 
status through peer support, and early intervention planning. 
 
Members raised concerns that the funding for the Schools Improvement Programme was 
now held by the DfE but that local authorities across the UK were falling into ‘inadequate’ 
status.  Officers reported that GM local authorities will have the opportunity through 
devolution to provide greater support one another and would continue to lobby for funding 
to support interventions.  Recent announcements have already confirmed some funding 
allocation, but the DfE are currently evaluating how this will impact GM. 
 
A member commented that the introduction of Regional Adoption Agencies was a 
significant positive step through GM devolution and that the creation of three hubs should 
be included within the outcomes of the Review of Children’s Services.  Officers agreed that 
the introduction of Regional Adoption Agencies would ensure a strong partnership 
approach across GM that would further be supported by a consistent singular court 
process. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. To note the progress made on the Greater Manchester Services for Children Review 

including those areas of work where Greater Manchester had received no direct 
funding from Central Government. 

 
2. To note the process for finalising the funding ask of the Department for Education to 

support the next phase of Review. 
 
3. To note the immediate next steps for the Review. 

 
 
17/07 GREATER MANCHESTER HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE PARTNERSHIP 
(GMHSCP): TAKING CHARGE – SIX MONTH PROGRESS REPORT 
 
Lord Peter Smith, GMCA Portfolio Lead for Health and Social Care introduced a report 
was which informed members of the progress in Greater Manchester since the Greater 
Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership (GMHSCP) took charge of their £6bn 
health and social care budget, and the £450m Transformation Fund, in April 2016.  He 

Page 67



 

6 

reminded members that the GMHSCP included the engagement of 37 local health and 
social care providers plus NHS England.  Their collaboration had been successful, but 
there were still challenges around reducing the gap in life chances across communities in 
GM.  The Transformation Fund provided a unique opportunity to improve the system 
through devolved decision making and funding to support implementation.  
 
Warren Heppolette, Executive Lead for Strategy System and Development at the Greater 
Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership took members through a short 
presentation which provided an update on the Greater Manchester ‘Taking Charge’ Plan.  
This document provides a shared strategy for health and social care across GM, and the 
six month review specifically highlighted the achievements of the GMHSCP, performance 
against the main strategic objectives and the current challenges faced by health and social 
care providers.  
 
A member asked why the surplus (showed in page 11 of the report) was not being used to 
alleviate other problems in the NHS budget.  It was reported that the financial picture was 
complicated, but that any surplus in the system equates to a deficit in another part of the 
system and was not actually true surplus.  There is an ongoing conversation amongst 
commissioners and providers as to how to calculate an accurate GM balance. 
 
Members praised the work of the Partnership and commented that the integration of health 
and social care was excellent, however concerns were raised about the impact of winter 
pressures on health services and the increase of waiting times etc.  The GMHSCP can 
attribute the rising figures of a&e waiting times and reduced bed capacities to a number of 
factors including; patients with complex issues who are not able to be discharged, a 
general increase in admissions to a&e, and a lack of specialist staff across the UK.  The 
Partnership further recognise that the delayed discharge figures are not satisfactory and 
the variation across GM needs to be addressed.  Through the Partnership, a recognition 
that all issues have a knock-on effect to other providers and patient outcomes has helped 
to move to a ‘whole system’ approach. 
 
A member reported that at another meeting it was reported that the North West 
Ambulance Service target for hand over to hospitals was not being met mainly through the 
lack of hospital resources to accept a patient upon arrival.  It was felt that this was just one 
example of the issues currently being faced by emergency care and that the GMHSCP 
needed to ensure this was a priority for improvements.  It was reported that the 
Partnership recognise that NWAS hand over targets are part of a systemic process which 
has further difficulties due to its complex set-up and accountability.  However, members of 
the Partnership are aware of the concerns and remain committed to working together, to 
sharing their difficulties and learning from one another. 
 
A member of the Pool asked whether bereavement services were within the scope of the 
GMHSCP as often associated issues can lead to further health and social care concerns.  
Officers reported that nothing was out of scope for the Partnership and they would be 
encouraging and supporting all partner organisations to tackle the mental health priorities 
through all workstreams.  The member further asked whether bullying was also considered 
within the Mental Health Strategy.  Again it was recognised the wider impact of bullying on 
mental health and officers informed the Pool that schools had been offered training around 
the ‘thrive’ model through the Children’s Mental Health Board. 
 

Page 68



 

7 

A member reported that locally there have been criticisms about the gap between the 
vision and the reality of health services especially in relation to the provision of primary 
care services.  The Partnership recognise that this is a real issue and that funding will not 
be the only answer.  All public services need to re-think what the NHS means for people in 
the 21st century as currently 40% of people who visit their GP have wider social issues that 
need non-medical support.  In tackling these root cause issues the demand on GP 
services and hospitals would be dramatically reduced. 
 
Members were grateful that the report offered a baseline for health and social care issues 
in GM so that all partners were aware of where we currently are, and where we want to be.  
However, there was some concern that through local commissioning there was variation 
across CCG’s as to what services were provided for local residents.  It was reported that 
the Partnership are working to ensure a balance between local need and a GM standard of 
services to ensure that people have access to the healthcare they need irrespective of 
where they live. 
 
A member asked whether the devolved powers would give scope for GM to implement 
some of the ICT enablers.  It was reported that there remains a number of issues in 
relation to paper records and data sharing across-organisations however GM devolution 
has created a single GM fund for digital transformation with Salford FT taking the lead.  
Rochdale have also attracted a private investor to support the GM health and social care 
system through their partnership with Google to support digital sharing. 
 
Members asked how the process for approving applications to the Transformation Fund 
was determined to ensure its transparency.  Officers reported that all applications are 
supported by the GM Health and Social Care Partnership and approved at the Partnership 
meetings. 
 
A member asked whether neurological conditions and asthma were seen as priorities for 
the ‘Taking Charge’ plan.  It was reported that they were not within the first wave but work 
was already underway in relation to neurological conditions and asthma would be 
considered as part of the discussions on health outcomes. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. To note the report. 

 
2. To share the report with relevant groups and stakeholders in their own localities. 

 
 

17/08 SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 2016/2017 
   
   
10 February 2017 
10 March 2017 
7 April 2017     
 
All meetings would be held 1:00pm - 3:00pm at Manchester Town Hall unless otherwise 
advertised. 
 

CHAIR 

Page 69



1

Item 4

JOINT GMCA AND AGMA SCRUTINY POOL

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON FRIDAY 10 FEBRUARY 2017
AT MANCHESTER TOWN HALL

PRESENT

Bolton Council Cllr Kevin McKeon
Cllr Andrew Morgan

Bury MBC Cllr Stella Smith
Cllr Roy Walker

Manchester CC Cllr Ahmed Ali
Cllr James Wilson

Oldham MBC Cllr Cheryl Brock
Cllr Colin McLaren

Rochdale BC Cllr Neil Butterworth
Cllr Michael Holly
Cllr Sara Rowbotham

Salford CC Cllr David Jolley

Stockport MBC Cllr Yvonne Guariento
Cllr Iain Roberts

Tameside MBC Cllr John Bell
Cllr Gillian Peet

Trafford MBC Cllr Michael Young
Cllr Barry Brotherton

Wigan MBC Cllr John O’Brien
Cllr Pam Stewart

IN ATTENDANCE

GMCA Richard Paver
Cllr Angeliki Stogia

GMFRS Andrea Hefferman

GMIST Julie Connor
Lindsay Dunn
Susan Ford

Page 70



2

GMWDA John Bland

OPCC Jayne Stephenson

TfGM David Daughney

17/09 APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Cllr Zahara Alijah (Manchester), Cllr Barry Brotherton
(Trafford), Cllr Jillian Collinson (Salford), Cllr Pam Dixon (Trafford), Cllr John McGahan
(Stockport), Cllr Garth Harkness (Oldham), Cllr Debbie Newall (Bolton) and Cllr John Walsh
(Salford).

17/10 CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair opened the meeting and welcomed all those present.

17/11 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Non prejudicial declarations of interest in respect of agenda item 6 were received from Cllr
John Bell (GMFRA), Cllr John O’Brien (GMFRA) and Cllr Michael Young (GMWDA).

17/12 MINUTES OF THE GMCA AND AGMA SCRUTINY POOL MEETING HELD ON 9
DECEMBER 2016

The Minutes of the GMCA and AGMA Scrutiny Pool meeting held on 13 January 2017 were
submitted for consideration.

RESOLVED/-

To approve the Minutes of the GMCA and AGMA Scrutiny Pool meeting held on 13 January
2017.

17/13 GMCA/AGMA SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME AND FORWARD PLAN

Members received a report to review and amend the Work Programme for the Joint GMCA
and AGMA Scrutiny Pool for 2016/17.

Susan Ford, GMIST informed members that an initial report and draft recommendations of
the Communications Task and Finish Group would be shared at today’s meeting and an
update by the renewable Energy Task and Finish Group will be brought to Scrutiny Pool in
March.

Page 71



3

RESOLVED/-

1. To note items for the 2016/17 Scrutiny Work Programme.

2. To note the progress with Scrutiny’s Task and Finish work as set out in section 2 of the
report.

17/14 GMCA/AGMA BUDGETS 2017/2018

Richard Paver, Treasurer, GMCA introduced a presentation that provided Members with an
overview of the GMCA and AGMA Budgets for 2017/18.

The presentation provided a high level summary of the reports which went to the meetings
of the Greater Manchester Combined Authority, the Joint GMCA/AGMA Executive Board
and the Police and Crime Panel on 27 January 2017. Links to these reports were highlighted
in the covering report.

The Financial settlement for Local Authorities was issued on 15 December and for the
districts and Fire Authority it represented year 2 of the 4 year settlement offered in 2016/17.
For the Police and Crime Commissioner it represented a further 1 year settlement.

When the final settlement for GM is announced it will be on the basis of participation in the
100% business rates pilot. It is recognised that there will be significant developments during
2017 with an Elected Mayor for the City Region and the increase in devolved powers. The
scope of the Combined Authority will be extended as the transfer of responsibilities for the
Police and Crime Commissioner and Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue Service. Within
this context, the budgets for both GMCA and AGMA are being presented for 2017/18 only.

David Daughney, Head of Finance, TfGM gave an overview of the Transport budget review
process and levy. Following scrutiny, the recommendation was for a standstill in the levy,
after adjustments and a refund to districts of £88million this becomes £104million. The
budgets for 2017/18 include additional costs in relation to both ‘non avoidable’ items and
new responsibilities and activities. Key issues in the transport budget, the levy budget
position for 2017/18 and a summary of the Transport Capital Budget were highlighted to
Scrutiny Pool members.

A member asked what the level of transport related reserves for 2016/17 and 2017/18 are
forecast at and if Transport Capital Budget Metrolink Schemes was attributable to the new
scheme in Trafford.

Officers clarified that the forecast for 31 March 2017 was £157m and the budgeted balance
for 31 March 2018 was £46m. The £20m increase in Metrolink Capital Schemes is mainly
made up of the Trafford Park extension, however other schemes such as the second City
crossing were incorporated into this amount.

Richard Paver provided an overview of non transport revenue budgets with associated
priorities, pressures, risks and proposed savings for 2017/18, including detail of AGMA and
GMCA reserves.

Page 72



4

Members of the Pool asked for a breakdown of the Mayoral Election costs and expressed
their concern with regards to the cost implications associated with ensuring each eligible
individual receives a candidate booklet rather than one per household.

Officers explained that the amount reflects the cost of administering the stand alone election
and it anticipated that the amount will be significantly less for future elections as they will
coincide with districts elections. Furthermore, the model for conducting the election is
overseen by the Electoral Commission.

A member asked if the amount budgeted for the GM Spatial Framework would be likely to
increase following consultation. Richard Paver confirmed that the estimate for this was
reasonable for both 17/18, 18/19 through to completion.

A member asked if it was a coincidence that the savings proposals for 2017/18 were 10%
for each budget heading. Officers reported that 10% was the savings target set for the
various activities.

The grant funding regime for 2017/18 was discussed along with the requirement to negotiate
borrowing powers that need to be in place for 8 May 2017 for the GMCA.

Andrea Hefferman, Director of Corporate Support, Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue
Authority (GMFRA) provided a budget summary and position statement for GMFRA. In order
to secure a four year funding position, the Authority had submitted their efficiency plan to
the Home Office which requires savings to 2019/20 of £13.5m. Frontline fire fighter posts
are expected to reduce to deliver savings of £7.8m and there are savings of £4.6m related
to back office functions.

With regards to the Fire Authority precept, GM are the second lowest stand alone Fire
Authority in the country and GMFRA are seeking to increase their precept by 1.99 % in
2017/18. It was reported that 2016/17 would see the first recruitment in 7 years of fire fighter
posts and a further100 will be recruited in this current year. Diversity has been promoted in
the recruitment process which has resulted in a more reflective workforce of the communities
served. Budget pressures such as resourcing large scale incidents such as the 2015 Boxing
Day floods and the lack of capital grant funding and national changes to the fire and rescue
service were highlighted as potential risks to the efficiency plan.

Members welcomed the approach with regards to recruiting and asked for clarification on
the numbers of women and from the BME community to reflect a more diverse workforce. It
was confirmed that recruitment had not yet taken place, however attracting a more diverse
range of applicants is a key area of focus to ensure that the service reflects the communities
it serves.

A member asked for clarification on the additional cost implications as a result of not
implementing the new shift duty system for fire fighters. It was explained that the implication
of not introducing the system meant greater operational flexibility was not being achieved.
The Deputy Chair of GMFRA and Vice Chair of Scrutiny clarified that negotiations with staff
and trade unions to implement shift changes are ongoing in order to reach agreement and
negotiate a settlement to sustain the community safety of the residents of GM at the same
time as delivering savings.

Page 73



5

It was confirmed that income potential of the new training facility at Bury was not included in
the budget at this stage as this is speculative.

Jayne Stephenson, Chief Finance Officer, provided an update on the Office of the Police
and Crime Commissioner precept and budget proposals for the one year settlement on
behalf of the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC).

The police grant for 2017/18 has been cut by 1.4%, therefore an increase to the police
precept of £5 was proposed and supported by the Police and Crime panel. The precept
increase will raise additional income with a commitment to be used for an additional 70 front
line police constables. Officer recruitment will sustain police officer numbers, replacing
officers that leave the force through natural turnover. This is regarded as an opportunity to
transform the diversity of GMP’s police officers.

Members welcomed the figures provided with regards to the recruitment from BME
background. However, the gender balance was not reflected in the report and was an area
that Scrutiny Pool were interested in. Jayne Stephenson provided a verbal update on the
recruitment of women police officers and gave an overview of those in senior rank up to and
including Assistant Chief Constable level. The figures for gender are available and it was
agreed that these would be circulated to members.

A member asked about the policy not to replace PCSO’s in GM. Jayne Stephenson clarified
that there is not a policy to not replace them, there is however a training capacity issue. The
current priority is to recruit police officers, 100 of which were previously PCSO’s. The number
of PCSO’s at the end of year will be 598 and this figure will increase to 658 next year.

A member asked if the Police and Crime Commissioner had responsibility for witnesses and
if so, was there any funding attached to this. It was confirmed that this is nationally funded
but there was further potential for devolution of services provided to victims and witnesses.

John Bland, Treasurer and Deputy Clerk of Greater Manchester Waste Disposal Authority
(GMWDA) introduced the budget and levy 2017/18 and the medium term financial plan to
2021/22 to the Scrutiny Pool.

The 2017/18 levy is proposed to increase by an average of 5.27%, which is in line with
previous updates. There are proposals to move resources between GMCA and GMWDA in
2017/18, utilising the transport and waste levies, so as to ensure that the impact of a gross
53.50% increase is mitigated at district level on an invest to save basis. Steps are being
taken to reduce future year’s levy burdens through the identification of cost reductions in the
contract and work on further promoting recycling and utilizing targeted proportionate
enforcement action for non-compliance.

A member asked if it was likely that we will reach a stage were low grade plastics can be
recycled. John Bland explained it was more cost effective to design these plastics out of the
system and revert to using recyclable packaging.

A member expressed their concern with regards to the underlying need for an investment of
£77m and asked if there would be any similar proposals going forward. John Bland
explained that the details of contract were part of commercial negotiations.

Page 74



6

RESOLVED/-

1. To note the report.

2. To provide information with regards to gender recruitment statistics in GMP to Scrutiny
Pool.

17/15 GMCA COMMUNICATIONS AND TASK AND FINISH GROUP
RECOMMENDATIONS

Councillor Angeliki Stogia, Chair of the GMCA Communications Task and Finish Group
presented the findings of the GM Scrutiny Pool’s task and finish group on communications.

The report’s findings offered valuable insights into the way that the GMCA’s work is
perceived by internal and external stakeholders where, during this time of rapid change,
effective and consistent communication is vital part of GMCA’s relationship with residents.

Some of the report’s recommendations anticipate activity already being taken forward by the
newly convened GM Communications Team. However it is hoped that task and finish
group’s findings will inform thinking about the development of communications products for
elected members and residents and be built into future work planning and decision making
about GM communications. It is anticipated that the GM communications team overseen by
the GMCA and the deputy head of paid service will ensure that the recommendations are
progressed and provide updates back to GM Scrutiny.

The recommendations were summarised and discussed and subject to any amendments
will report to the GMCA on 24 February.

Members offered support for the report and the recommendations and discussed the
requirement to engage all parties as soon as possible in order to support the upcoming
Mayoral election.

Officers updated Scrutiny Pool on the development of a new web site that would provide key
messages with regards to the role of the Mayor and the new devolved powers. Members
requested that consideration should be given to wider communication and engagement with
key stakeholders that do not necessarily use the internet or social media.

RESOLVED/-

1. To note and endorse the recommendations in the report and presentation.

2. To endorse for consideration and approval of the GMCA/AGMA Joint meeting on 24
February.

Page 75



7

17/16 SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 2016/2017

10 March 2017
7 April 2017

All meetings would be held 1:00pm - 3:00pm at Manchester Town Hall unless otherwise
advertised.

CHAIR

Page 76



 

1 

           Item 4 
 

JOINT GMCA AND AGMA SCRUTINY POOL 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON FRIDAY 10 MARCH 2017  
  AT MANCHESTER TOWN HALL 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
 Bolton Council    Cllr Kevin McKeon 
       Cllr Debbie Newall     
 
Bury MBC     Cllr Stella Smith 
       Cllr Roy Walker 
          
Manchester CC    Cllr James Wilson 
        
Oldham MBC     Cllr Cheryl Brock 
       Cllr Colin McLaren 
            
Rochdale BC     Cllr Neil Butterworth 
       Cllr Michael Holly 
       Cllr Sara Rowbotham 
 
Salford CC      Cllr David Jolley  
      
Stockport MBC    Cllr Yvonne Guariento 
       Cllr John McGahan 
        
Tameside MBC    Cllr John Bell  
       Cllr Gillian Peet 
       Cllr Kevin Welsh 
            
 Trafford MBC    Cllr Pam Dixon 
       Cllr Barry Brotherton 
        
Wigan MBC     Cllr John O’Brien 
       Cllr Pam Stewart  
 
IN ATTENDANCE 

 
 GMCA     Andrew Lightfoot 
  

GMIST     Allan Sparrow 
       Susan Ford 
 

 
        

17/17  APOLOGIES 

Page 77



 

2 

 
Apologies were received from Cllr Zahara Alijah (Manchester), Cllr Jillian Collinson (Salford), 
Cllr Andrew Morgan (Bolton) Cllr John Walsh (Salford), Cllr Edward Houlton (Wigan) and 
Cllr Michael Young (Trafford). 
 
 
17/18 CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 
The Chair opened the meeting and welcomed all those present. He reported that the GMCA 
had endorsed the recommendations of the Task and Finish Group on communications at 
their meeting on 24 February. 
 
 
17/19 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest made by any member in respect of items on the 
agenda. 
 
 
17/20 MINUTES OF THE GMCA AND AGMA SCRUTINY POOL MEETING HELD ON 10 

FEBRUARY 2017. 
 

The Minutes of the GMCA and AGMA Scrutiny Pool meeting held on 10 February 2017 were 
submitted for consideration. Councillor Brotherton reported that he had submitted his 
apology for the February meeting which were showing him as being present at the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
To approve the Minutes of the GMCA and AGMA Scrutiny Pool meeting held on 10 February 
2017 subject to the removal of Councillor Brotherton’s name from the list of attendees and 
its inclusion on the list of apologies. 
 
 
17/21 GMCA/AGMA SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME AND FORWARD PLAN 
 
A report was submitted requesting members received to review and amend the Work 
Programme for the Joint GMCA and AGMA Scrutiny Pool for 2016/17. 
 
Members requested a formal update on the Employment and Skills Task and Finish Group 
at their meeting in April, in addition to the other reports on the agenda. 
 
Councillor Neil Butterworth added that he would provide members with an update on the 
work being carried out by the Energy Task and Finish Group at the next Scrutiny Pool 
meeting. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. To note items for the 2016/17 Scrutiny Work Programme. 
 
2. To note the progress with Scrutiny’s Task and Finish work as set out in section 2 of the 

report. 

Page 78



 

3 

 

3. That GMIST request a formal update on the Employment and Skills Task and Finish 
Group for the next meeting of the Scrutiny Pool. 

 
4. That GMIST respond to the correspondence received from the Chair of the Energy Task 

and Finish Group and note that an update from the Energy Task and Finish Group would 
be reported to the next meeting. 

 
 
17/22 GMCA TRANSITION 
 
Andrew Lightfoot, Deputy Head of Paid Service provided members with a brief update on 
the organisational changes underway in preparation for devolution to Greater Manchester 
and the election of the Mayor for Greater Manchester in May 2017. 
 
He reminded members that the Greater Manchester Combined Authority was established in 
2011, but over the next couple of months it will move into another iteration as a number of 
functions are brought together in an organisational reconfiguration including the Greater 
Manchester Fire Authority, The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner and a number 
of AGMA units including New Economy and GMIST. 
 
There are a series of Orders and Government legislation being prepared in advance of the 
Mayoral election on 4 May 2017, residents and prospective candidates can find out more 
information via the new GM elects website (https://www.gmelects.org.uk/). Eamonn Boylan 
(the current Chief Executive of Stockport MBC) has been appointed as the first full time 
Chief Executive for the GMCA and will be starting imminently, and the GM Mayor will take 
office on 8 May. 
 
There have already been a number of Orders laid and passed by Government in relation to 
many of the GMCA new functions, including the GM Fire and Rescue Service and the Office 
of the Police and Crime Commissioner. Officers reported that further Orders are on track to 
support the election and transition for the GMCA. 
 
GM will have unique powers in relation to the Mayor and the Combined Authority, to support 
this there are specific legislation being put in place regarding this broad range of powers. 
 
HR consultations are ongoing with all staff who are affected by the organisational changes 
with no major issues arising from the TUPE processes. A phased transfer of staff begins 
from 1 April, with the majority of staff being transferred on 8 May.  Work regarding systems 
such as finance, ICT, payroll etc; would built around the current GM Fire and Rescue Service 
systems. 
 
The GMCA headquarters will be Churchgate House from April 2017, but not all GMCA staff 
will be based there. 
 
Members asked how transport powers would be distributed in the new arrangements 
between TfGMC and the GM Mayor.  Officers explained how these issues were currently 

Page 79



 

4 

being worked through in detail but nothing should fundamentally change immediately.  The 
GM Mayoral powers will specifically be in relation to the Buses Bill and strategic 
implementation for smart ticketing, but the relationship between these and the transport 
functions of the GMCA is being considered as part of the devolution arrangements.  There 
would, however, be an ongoing need for a committee of all GM authorities to input into 
transport strategy for GM. 
 
Members further reiterated the need for a joined up transport system for GM that includes 
the rail system.  Officers reported that the GM Transport Vision includes all methods of public 
transport, and there is already work underway to influence transport regulation and transport 
provision which will enable smart ticketing to be as successful in our conurbation as other 
areas. 
 
A member asked what the level of borrowing powers would be for the GMCA post April 
2017.  Officers confirmed that there are ongoing discussions with Treasury regarding this 
issue and that initial specified potential borrowing powers were not comparable with local 
authorities, however there had recently been a shift in this view and it was now looking more 
positive. 
 
Members asked to have sight of the Overview and Scrutiny Order to further understand how 
the scrutiny function will be arranged going forward.  Officers agreed to circulate the Order 
and informed members that the Scrutiny Working Group has been reviewing the scrutiny 
function over the past few months.  This group included representation from local authorities 
and has reached some conclusions in line with legislation which will be shared with the 
GMCA. Their recommendations support a wider scrutiny function which will cover a broader 
range of functions and will require a greater number of scrutiny committees to have the 
capacity to undertake these additional responsibilities.  
 
A member asked whether the organisational changes will include the joining of AGMA and 
the GMCA.  It was confirmed that the GMCA will assume all the AGMA functions, but that 
legally the dissolution of AGMA may take a couple of years.  
 
Members of the Pool asked whether they will be included in the GMCA Scrutiny function 
going forward and whether there would be the opportunity to develop their knowledge.  
Officers confirmed that through the new arrangements there would be the requirement for 
more members to be involved in overview and scrutiny, however members would continue 
to be appointed through their authorities as per the current arrangements. In addition to this, 
members further asked whether there would be a members allowance designated for 
scrutiny.  Current arrangements do not include allowances for scrutiny members, but officers 
reported that this could change in the future. 
 
Members asked that local authorities be informed as soon as possible as to the number of 
positions on the GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool in order that time be given to local negotiations.  
Officers assured that this would happen, but reminded members that there was some work 
required in advance to determine political and gender balances. 
 
A member asked whether there would be a Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) 
budget coming to GM as part of devolution.  Officers reported that the Working and Health 
Programme is part of devolution deal with GM and Government and some of the GMCA 
team will oversee this budget going forward, it was suggested that this may be a useful area 
for members to scrutinise in the future.  

Page 80



 

5 

 
Members of the Pool asked how likely GM would see the deregulation of buses through the 
Buses Bill.  Officers have been assured through discussions (with MPs and senior servants) 
bill will receive royal ascent in early April but that an update could be provided to scrutiny at 
the next meeting.  
 
Members recognised that as the remit of the GMCA grows further, that the capacity of the 
scrutiny function needs to echo this in order for detailed scrutiny to be effectively undertaken.  
Officers reported that the function and volume of work for overview and scrutiny has been 
considered by the scrutiny working group and included in their recommendations.  This 
paper will be circulated to all GM authorities over the next couple of weeks and would also 
be shared with members of the Scrutiny Pool for comment.  Members welcomed this, and 
further suggested that an item on the future of scrutiny be brought to the next meeting of the 
Pool. 
 
Further to this, members urged that scrutiny continue to receive policy development at a 
pre-decision stage in order for timely and useful input.  Officers re-iterated that this has been 
a central principle of overview and scrutiny for the past few years and the GMCA welcome 
this approach. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. To note the report. 

 
2. To share the Scrutiny Order and the Centre for Public Scrutiny guide with members. 

 
3. To consider the devolved Working Well Programme as a future item for scrutiny. 

 
4. To receive an update on the progress of the Buses Bill at the meeting in April 2017. 

 
5. To circulate the recommendations of the Scrutiny Working Group with members of the 

Pool and that an item on the future GM scrutiny function be brought to the next meeting. 
 
 
17/23 GREATER MANCHESTER STRATEGY REFRESH   

 
Andrew Lightfoot, Deputy Head of Paid Service GMCA reminded members of his previous 
presentation which shared the planned approach to a conversational consultation for the 
Greater Manchester Strategy (GMS) Refresh.  The first phase was an open discussion 
which asked what was important to residents of GM, and received 1500 responses  
 
The first iteration of the draft strategy has been created from those responses and shared 
with the GMCA at their meeting in February.  Members of the GMCA asked that the strategy 
consultation be extended post-election of the GM Mayor to ensure that residents had further 
opportunities to engage and that the widest possible consultation be undertaken. 
 
Both members and officers recognised that the 2013 strategy was out of date and a 
changing environment necessitated a refreshed GMS.  The strategy shared some 
successes from the previous strategy including investment, technology advances and 
devolution, but there was a need to look at where we are now.  There are a number of 

Page 81



 

6 

current key issues for GM highlighted in draft strategy including productivity gap, low wages, 
the poverty agenda and challenges within the skills system. 
 
The GMS defines a new vision for Greater Manchester as – 
‘By 2040 Greater Manchester will be one of the world’s leading city regions, reaping the 
benefits of sustainable and inclusive growth across a thriving Northern economy.  It will be 
ever more self- reliant, connected, dynamic, inclusive, digitally-driven, productive, innovative 
and creative. A destination of choice to live, work, invest and visit, GM will be known for the 
high levels of happiness and quality of life our people enjoy.  No one will be held back, and 
no one will be left behind: all will be able to contribute to and benefit fully from the continued 
success of Greater Manchester.’ 
 
The draft GMS is clear about our priorities going forward focusing on strong people and 
strong place which continues the push to reform public services and focusses on improving 
outcomes through working with communities.  It further recognises the need for economic 
growth across whole of GM and not just Manchester city centre, creating opportunities for 
all residents. 
 
Members commended an excellent report and passionate vision.  Specifically technological 
and digital development in GM was highlighted as exemplary but members felt that there 
was a need for an infrastructure to support these areas of growth through the sustained 
establishment of industries (and job creation) to ensure we can deliver on our aspirations. 
Members of the Pool urged for the need to see benefits in GM not just in other areas of the 
world and commented that the strategy does not go far enough in determining how GM will 
create new employment opportunities and economic growth in these sectors.   
 
Members felt that the strategy needed more emphasis as to how we will practically achieve 
its aspirations. Its reference to ‘no one left behind’ could come across as quite flippant as 
currently lots of people currently are left behind.  Members urged that the GMS should 
include plans to ensure high quality education for all to tackle the current skills gap and 
specific measures to address health and social care barriers that prevent people from 
working.  Currently it seems that GM have limited control over education provision and 
influencing a curriculum which addresses the skills gap that GM requires.  Officers 
recognised the deficit in skills delivery and its importance in relation to improving life chances 
and offered to look at how this part of the GMS could be enhanced. 
 
Members expressed their pride in how hard officers in GM have worked over the years to 
ensure that the conurbation is the best that it can be for all its residents.  There has been 
marked progress since the initial GMS, and the new document needs to be a visionary tool 
to drive progress in the future.  Members reported a need for strong aspirations as devolution 
is an exciting time for GM.  
 
The extension of the consultation period was endorsed by members.  Lessons from the 
communications task and finish group should be used in the GMS consultation specifically 
in determining what devolution means for each community, and using a localised approach 
to improve engagement. Members felt that the draft GMS does not currently reflect this but 
that this approach could markedly improve the levels of engagement.  Officers agreed to 
pick up the recommendations in light of the second phase of the consultation. 
 
Furthermore, members commented that there was a need to generate passion and 
enthusiasm with the public, and that it would be an important part of the role of the GM 

Page 82



 

7 

Mayor to promote a positive message regarding devolution and increase the rapport with 
residents. 
 
A member commented that “strong people” may not be a term which would resonate with 
all people in GM and asked that officers give consideration to the use of the term “resilient”. 
 
Members asked that the need for valuable practical vocational training for young people is 
highlighted through the GMS, as often those who are less academically able do not have 
the opportunity to develop their practical skills and given the ability to recognise the value 
they have in society.  However these skills and trades are vital to the economic development 
of GM. 
 
Members commented that there seemed a low level of engagement from young people in 
initial phase of the GMS consultation, and asked officers what will be done differently to 
engage with ‘hard to reach’ parts of the GM population. It was reported that GM was now 
getting the message out through young people forums and face to face events facilitated by 
neutral creditable people. Officers continue to improve systems and processes to engage 
and consult all GM residents. . 
 
Members urged for the need to summarise the GMS in a ‘one-page’ document to keep the 
message short, clear and concise and improve engagement with residents. 
 
The Chair summarised the discussion and thanked members of their input. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
To note the report and amended timeframe for the second phase of the consultation. 
 

 
17/24 SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 2016/2017 
 
The next meeting of the GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool will be held on Friday 7 April 2017. 
    

1. GMIST to invite Sam Riley from the NW Skills Academy to the next meeting. 
 

    
 

CHAIR 

Page 83



 

1 

           6 
 

JOINT GMCA AND AGMA SCRUTINY POOL 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON FRIDAY 7 APRIL 2017  

  AT MANCHESTER TOWN HALL 

 

 

PRESENT 

 
 Bolton Council    Cllr Kevin McKeon 
       Cllr Debbie Newall 
       Cllr Andrew Morgan     
 
Bury MBC     Cllr Stella Smith 
       Cllr Roy Walker 
          
Manchester CC    Cllr James Wilson 
       Cllr Zahara Alijah 
        
Oldham MBC     Cllr Colin McLaren 
            
Rochdale BC     Cllr Neil Butterworth 
       Cllr Michael Holly 
 
Salford CC      Cllr David Jolley  
      
Stockport MBC    Cllr Iain Roberts 
       Cllr John McGahan 
        
Tameside MBC    Cllr John Bell  
            
 Trafford MBC    Cllr Pam Dixon 
       Cllr Barry Brotherton 
       Cllr Michael Young 
        
Wigan MBC     Cllr John O’Brien 
       Cllr Pam Stewart 
 

IN ATTENDANCE 

 
 GMCA     Simon Nokes 
       Paul Beardmore 
 
 NW Skills Academy    Samuel Riley 
 

GMIST     Nicola Ward 
       Susan Ford 
 

 

Page 84



 

2 

        
17/25  APOLOGIES 
 

Apologies were received from Cllr Skillen (Bury), Cllr Ali (Manchester), Cllr Harkness 
(Oldham), Cllr Rowbotham (Rochdale), Cllrs Collinson and Walsh (Salford) and Cllr Peet 
(Tameside). 
 
 
17/26 CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 

 
The Vice Chair, John Bell made a short presentation to the Chair, Councillor John O’Brien 
and thanked him for his long standing commitment to GM Scrutiny since its establishment 
and the work he had undertaken in the role as Chair over the last five years. 
 
 
17/27 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
Councillor Alijah declared an interest in relation to item 6 and 7 on the agenda as she is a 
Trustee for the Hideaway Youth Project and a Lecturer in Education at the University of 
Manchester. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
The Scrutiny Pool noted the declared interest as above. 
 

 

17/28 MINUTES OF THE GMCA AND AGMA SCRUTINY POOL MEETING HELD ON 10 

MARCH 2017. 

 
The Minutes of the GMCA and AGMA Scrutiny Pool meeting held on 10 March 2017 were 
submitted for consideration.  
 

RESOLVED/- 
 
The Scrutiny Pool approved the Minutes of the GMCA and AGMA Scrutiny Pool meeting 
held on 10 March 2017. 
 

 

17/29 GMCA/AGMA FORWARD PLAN 

 

Members received a report which provided a forward plan of key decisions to be made by 
the GMCA and Joint GMCA/AGMA Executive. 
 
Officers reported that over the forthcoming weeks there would be an opportunity for 
members to complete a short survey as part of an annual reflection process for the Scrutiny 
Pool. The findings of this survey will highlight those areas of review which members felt were 
particular successes, and identify areas where members believe that further improvements 
could be made.  
 
RESOLVED/- 

 

Page 85



 

3 

The Scrutiny Pool noted the GMCA and Joint GMCA/AGMA Forward Plan. 
 
 
17/30 EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS 

 

Simon Nokes, GMCA’s Executive Director for Policy and Strategy took members through a 
report which provided an update on activity against the recommendations agreed by the GM 
Scrutiny Task and Finish Group.  It also gave an overview of the work being undertaken 
against each of the ten GM work and skills priorities. 
 
He reported that there are challenges which remain in the skills sector, including the 
uncertainty about the economy, a fragmented higher education system, a gap in digital skills 
provision, and incentives which only reward starting courses.  The GMCA are working to 
address these issues through a number of projects including the introduction of Careers and 
Enterprise Advisors, a travel allowance scheme for apprentices, the co-commissioning of 
the Work Programme, and strengthening links between employers and schools through an 
improved work experience programme. 
 
Members commended the work being undertaken with post 16 young people, but urged that 
GM should commit to earlier intervention with young people before they become NEET and 
prioritise the creation of a wider curriculum which values practical skills and academic skills 
equally. Members commented that the current disengagement of young people in schools 
has a direct correlation to increased levels of unemployment.  Officers reported regular 
conversations with Government regarding early intervention opportunities to improve school 
readiness and increase GCSE results but that there remains a need to better join up the 
whole education process. 
 
A member commented that careers advice is crucial to supporting young people into the 
right career, but that high profile careers fairs which brought professionals into the young 
people’s domain seem less prevalent.  Officers reported a general decline in work 
experience and careers advice but reminded the Pool that the linking of employers to 
schools remains a key priority for GM work and skills. 
 
Members asked for young people who do not fall into the NEET category to be addressed 
as often they can fall below the radar.  They added that there had been a number of policies 
to address skills gaps in schools which had been ‘parachuted’ into schools and had no 
sustained impact.  Consideration should be given to how GM will do things differently to 
ensure long term relationships.  Officers reported that the Careers and Enterprise Advisors 
will help to unlock relationships with schools and provide the inroad to building sustainable 
relationships. 
 
Members of the Pool asked whether a GM skills analysis had been undertaken to identify 
the areas in which further education provision is required.  It was reported that GM are 
undergoing work to identify the future employment needs for the conurbation and the 
changing nature of the economy over the next 20 years.  It is anticipated that the devolved 
powers regarding post 19 education will give GM opportunities to influence how we can 
ensure that young people can acquire the skills they need for the future jobs market. 
 
A member thanked the GMCA for their support in taking forward the recommendations of 
the Task and Finish Group, and welcomed the progress made.  They commented that the 
introduction of the Careers and Enterprise Advisors was a step in the right direction, but that 

Page 86



 

4 

more advisors were needed to ensure the scheme has impact across GM. In addition, this 
advice needs to be of quality, consistent and coordinated across all areas of GM. 
 
Members asked whether there was a consistency to private sector apprenticeship schemes 
and who holds training providers to account.  Officers responded that all training providers 
are regulated via Ofsted and that future funding schemes would change as a result of the 
introduction of the apprenticeship levy. 
 
A member urged that young people need to be given parity of esteem with an array of 
vocational training which are seen as valuable elements of the colleges’ offer.  Curriculums 
should allow for personal tailoring to ensure that young people can have their particular skills 
developed through a range of interest-based subjects which are not deemed as secondary 
to more academic routes. 
 

RESOLVED/- 

 
1. To note the report. 

 
2. That officers take back the comments and views of scrutiny members to the Employment 

and Skills Partnership, and continue to drive forward the recommendations made by the 
Task and Finish Group. 

 

 

17/31 NORTH WEST SKILLS ACADEMY   

 

The Chair introduced Samuel Riley, Director of the North West Skills Academy who talked 
to the Pool about his background and the development of his company.  Through his work 
in the construction industry, he recognised a gap in the market for providing training that 
would allow people straight into employment in the construction sector.  NW Skills Academy 
has supported 1500 young people into work over the past 12 months, through the use of 
small government grants and funding.  They now employ 16 people, including 8 specific 
trade assessors which has allowed the curriculum provision to be expanded.  He further 
commented that the GM devolution deal offers a great opportunity to develop new ways of 
thinking and strengthen the integration of businesses with the GMCA. 
 
Members commented that the skills agenda needs to begin with young children as many 
are being failed by the current system and the lack of careers knowledge at the age of 15 
when they are required to make choices about their higher education.  Samuel shared about 
the ‘Construction Skills Village’ 1in Doncaster where young children are invited to go and 
experience the construction industry and learn about trade skills.  He further added that the 
current education system places barriers to learning as many people continue to fail their 
Maths and English GCSEs and as a result are unable to progress to further education. 
 
Members felt that the experience of NW Skills Academy should be shared across GM as 
there were many lessons to be learnt and opportunities to support the building sector. 
 

                                                 

1 http://www.barnsley.ac.uk/our-departments/construction/skills-village-open-event/  

Page 87



 

5 

Members asked whether the NW Skills Academy had diversified into any other areas and 
whether their company could grow with additional funding and support.  Samuel responded 
that their approach to skills provision was not sector specific and could be applied to any 
area with the right coordinators and specialism knowledge. 
 
The Pool discussed how college based diploma qualifications do not allow for a student to 
move directly into work as this needs to be followed by a NVQ to give them the full 
qualifications required to work on a building site.  This was an issue that needed addressing 
at a GM level to remove these barriers to employment and to avoid using public funding to 
support qualifications which are no use in the workplace. 
 
Members of the Pool asked how the GMCA could further support organisations like NW 
Skills Academy across the conurbation to increase more people back into work.  Samuel 
commented that any influence over the flexibility of funding would be really beneficial to 
supporting future schemes as in the current arrangements some learners are not eligible for 
programmes because they do not meet the narrow funding criteria. 
 
RESOLVED/- 

 

The Scrutiny Pool noted the information provided and thank the representative from NW 
Skills Academy. 
 

 

17/32 SOCIAL HOUSING 

 

At the request of members, Paul Beardmore, GM Lead Officer for Housing presented a 
report which set out the current position, recent trends and policy developments and some 
likely key issues emerging from the recent Housing White Paper. 
 
The report highlighted some of the priority areas for GM, including finding more opportunities 
to increase the supply of affordable housing, the consideration of a workable funding model 
for supported housing, the possibility of improving older persons housing to allow for the re-
let of large family homes and how to address increased levels of homelessness. 
 
A member commented that the current house building market appears broken as the only 
recent growth has been in private rented sector and there have been fewer social housing 
builds. 
 
Members urged that the planned housing builds across GM are designed and approved to 
meet the needs and demands of the population, rather than meeting the demands of the 
developpers. 
 
A member of the Pool asked that the variation on housing register data are addressed to 
show a truly comparable picture of housing waiting lists across GM.  Officers agreed to 
undertake some further work on this and report back to members. 
 
Members were concerned that despite the demand for affordable homes and the availability 
of brown field sites that finance was not available to support building schemes and therefore 
the creation of more homes.  Officers reported that GM is in a good position to negotiate 
bespoke deals with Government through the White Paper and that ensuring funding 
flexibility was a key priority to ensure housing growth. 

Page 88



 

6 

 
A member asked whether the taxation changes have impacted the private rental sector for 
GM.  Officers reported that there had been a significant drop in sales in March 2016 but that 
levels had picked up again to projected levels for 2017. The taxation changes had the most 
impact on smaller housing landlords and their ability to purchase new properties, larger firms 
were less affected. 
 
A member of the Pool urged that GM should be supporting more people to be purchasing 
their own home.  Officers reported that this was happening through a number of schemes 
including the ‘shared ownership programme’ and the ‘rent to purchase’ model. 
 
Members reported high quality social housing and asked whether there had been an 
increase in aspirations to live in social housing stock.  Officers re-iterated that many of the 
new build social housing has been of a really high standard and this was encouraging more 
people to choose this over poorer quality private rental housing. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. To note the report. 
2. To review the data relating to housing register (as shown in table 2) and report back 

to members once the data was comparable across GM. 
3. To bring a report to a future scrutiny meeting regarding the future plans for schemes 

to increase home ownership. 
 

 

17/33 SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 2017/2018 

 
The dates for the GM scrutiny meetings for 2017/18 will be determined following the GMCA 
AGM in June 2017. 

 
    
 

CHAIR 

Page 89


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Draft Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2017/18
	7 Discretionary Crisis Fund and Local Welfare Provision Year End Report 2016/17
	Discretionary Crisis Fund and Local Welfare Provision Year End Report 2016/17 enc. 1

	8 Directorate Plans 2016-17 Quarter 4 Performance Update - Neighbourhoods Directorate
	Append. 1 for Directorate Plans 2016-17 Quarter 4 Performance Update

	9 Directorate Plans 2016-17 Quarter 4 Performance Update - Economy Directorate
	Append. 1 for Directorate Plans 2016-17 Quarter 4 Performance Update
	Append. 2 for Directorate Plans 2016-17 Quarter 4 Performance Update

	10 GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool
	04_Scrutiny_Pool_Mins_10_February_2017
	04_Scrutiny_Pool_Mins_10_March_2017
	6_Scrutiny_Pool_Mins_7_April_2017


